
 

 

Audit and Risk Committee  - 18 November 2022 1 

 

BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY 

Dear Member 

 

A meeting of the AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE will be held on FRIDAY, 18TH 

NOVEMBER, 2022 AT 10.00 AM when your attendance is requested. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Catherine Mealing-Jones 

Chief Executive 

 

BRECON BEACONS NATIONAL PARK AUTHORITY BROADCASTS ALL 

PUBLIC MEETINGS LIVE ON YOUTUBE  

www.youtube.com/BreconBeaconsNPA 

 

Please ensure you mute your microphone during the meeting until the Chair 

invites you to speak. 

Should there be a comfort break during the meeting please ensure your 

microphone is on mute and that your camera is switched off. 

 

1  CORRESPONDENCE  

 To receive and consider the attached Schedule of Correspondence and any 

recommendations thereon (below). 

  

  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive any declarations of interest from Members relating to items on the 

agenda.  Members’ attention is drawn to the sheet attached to the attendance 

sheet and the need to record their declarations verbally and in writing, 

specifying the nature of the interest. 

If Members have declared an interest in an item please ensure that you 

inform the Chair when you are leaving the room, so that this can be 

recorded in the minutes. 

Public Document Pack

http://www.youtube.com/BreconBeaconsNPA


 

 

 

 

Audit and Risk Committee  - 18 November 2022 2 

 

  

  

3  PUBLIC SPEAKING  

 To give opportunity for members of the public to address the meeting in 

accordance with the Authority’s Public Speaking Scheme. 

  

4  ANNUAL HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 2021-22 (Pages 5 - 

14) 

5  BUILDINGS, MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE REPORT 2021-

22 (Pages 15 - 28) 

6  INTERNAL AUDIT FOLLOW UP REPORT (Pages 29 - 42) 

7  ANNUAL PLAN FOR 2022-23 (Pages 43 - 54) 

8  AUDIT WALES ACTION PLAN (Pages 55 - 70) 

9  2021-22 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS - AUDIT WALES' ORAL 

UPDATE (Pages 71 - 72) 

10  RISK MANAGEMENT (Pages 73 - 102) 

11  COMPLIMENTS, COMPLAINTS AND FREEDOM OF 

INFORMATION UPDATES (Pages 103 - 118) 

12  ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 Any other business that the Chair considers of sufficient urgency and has been 
notified to him in advance. 

  

13  ACCESS TO INFORMATION  

 RECOMMENDATION: to exclude the press and public from the 

meeting during consideration of item 14 in accordance with section 

100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended, on the 

grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information 

as defined in paragraphs 12, 13, 14 ac 16 of Schedule 12A to the 

Local Government Act 1972. 



 

 

 

 

Audit and Risk Committee  - 18 November 2022 3 

 

  

14  LEGAL RISK UPDATE (Pages 119 - 124) 

 

SCHEDULE OF CORRESPONDENCE 

1. To receive apologies for absence 

2. Such other correspondence as, in the opinion of the Chair, is of such urgency as 

to warrant consideration. 

Any enquiries about this agenda should be addressed to Democratic Services 



This page is intentionally left blank



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

1 of 4 

To: Audit and Risk Committee, 18th November 2022 
From: Helen Cargill, Director of Audit, TIAA 
 
 
Annual Head of Internal Audit Report for 2021/22 

 
 

Decision Required YES ☒ / NO ☐ Agenda Item 4 

 

Recommendation 

Consider the contents of the report & enclosures 

Approve the Annual Report for 2021/22 

 

Key Messages 

To provide the annual assurance opinion on the governance, risk management and 
internal control arrangements of the Authority  

 
Background 

 
TIAA were re-appointed as the Authority’s auditors in April 2022 for a three-year period to 
2024/25. Each year an overall assurance report is provided to the Committee summarising 
the outcome of the audits undertaken during the year. This forms a part of the wider 
governance framework of the Authority. 
 
Annual Report 2021/22 
During the year there was one change to the Audit Plan and this change was approved by 
the Chief Executive. The planned audit of Governance – Strategic Control was not 
undertaken due to the publication of the Audit Wales report ‘Progress in Delivering Statutory 
Recommendations – Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’ published in March 2022. 
 
The overall opinion is repeated below: 
 
HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT’S ANNUAL OPINION  
TIAA is satisfied that, for the areas reviewed during the year, Brecon Beacons National Park 
Authority has reasonable and effective risk management and internal control processes in 
place. Three statutory recommendations relating to governance and leadership were raised 
by Audit Wales in February 2021. Implementation remained outstanding in March 2022 
when the Authority was advised to seek assistance from Welsh Ministers to resolve the 
problems. On this basis, TIAA is unable to provide assurance on the governance 
arrangements in place during 2021/22. 
 
This opinion is based solely on the matters that came to the attention of TIAA during the 
course of the internal audit reviews carried out during the year and is not an opinion on all 
elements of the risk management, control and governance processes or the ongoing 
financial viability or your ability to meet financial obligations which must be obtained by 
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority from its various sources of assurance. 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

2 of 4 

Relation to Authority Priorities 

 
The work of audit is intended to assist in the achievement of all corporate and service 
objectives and supports the annual governance statement. 
 
Impact Analysis 

 
Financial - There are no resource implications as a direct result of this report.  The external 
cost of the review will be met out of existing budget. 
 
Legal – No legal implications directly from this report. 
 
Diversity Implications - None directly from this report 
 
Human Resources - There are no HR implications as a direct result of this report. 
 
Sustainability – There are no implications as a direct result of this report. 
 
Risk 

 
Internal audits address areas assessed as higher risk for the Authority and will recommend 
actions which will help to manage and reduce risks. Internal audit is one of the tools which is 
used by Members and management to gain assurance that internal controls are operating 
effectively. TIAA has been working with BBNPA since 2018 and is responsive to the needs 
and operating environment of the Authority in an important transitional year. 
 
Conclusion and Next Steps 

 

 That the contents of the report and the enclosures are considered by the Committee  

 That the Annual Report for 2021/22 is approved by the Committee 
  

Page 6



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

3 of 4 

Appendix One:  

 
Annual Head of Internal Report 2021/22  

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Internal Audit 

 

November 2022 

FINAL 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

 Internal Audit Annual Report 

 2021/22 

P
age 9



 

 
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Internal Audit Annual Report  
Page 1 

 

Internal Audit Annual Report 

Introduction 

This is the 2021/22 Annual Report by TIAA on the internal control environment at Brecon 
Beacons National Park Authority .The annual internal audit report summaries the 
outcomes of the reviews we have carried out on the organisation’s framework of 
governance, risk management and control. This report, which incorporates CIPFA 
guidance on the potential limitation of scope brought about by the impact of COVID-19, 
is designed to assist the Authority in making its annual governance statement.  

Limitations on our opinion arising from Covid-19  

The impact of COVID-19 on many organisations has continued to be felt throughout 
2021/22 with restrictions continuing to be applied. This has been compounded by the 
emergence of new variants which has required the vaccination and booster programme 
to be accelerated. These have impacted staff availability and organisational capacity. It is 
acknowledged that this has affected some sectors more than others.   

For internal audit the question remains as to whether sufficient internal audit work has 
been undertaken to gain assurance during 2021/22. This is a key consideration to fulfil the 
requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) for the Head of Internal 
Audit (HIA) when issuing their annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness 
of the organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control. This 
opinion is in turn one of the sources of assurance that the organisation relies on for its 
Annual Governance Statement. Factors that need to be taken in to account in reaching a 
conclusion include: 

 Has any reduction in coverage compared to what was planned resulted in 
insufficient assurance work? 

 Have any limitations in the scope of individual assignments resulted in it only 
being possible to place partial assurance on the outcome?  

 Have changes in ways of working led to gaps in the governance, risk management 
and control arrangements?  

TIAA understands the considerable challenges and the difficult decisions that 
organisations are having to deal with, however, the professional and regulatory 
expectations on public bodies to ensure that their internal audit arrangements conform 
with PSIAS have not changed. In this difficult situation, heads of internal audit will need 
to consider whether they can still issue the annual opinion or whether there will need to 
be a limitation of scope. 

A limitation of scope arises where the HIA is unable to draw on sufficient assurance to 
issue a complete annual opinion in accordance with the professional standards. This is an 
issue not only for the HIA but also for the leadership team and the audit committee who 
normally rely on that opinion. It may also have wider consequences for stakeholder 
assessments of the organisation. 

What this means for Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  

There has been minimal or no impact on the delivery of the internal audit work for 
2021/22 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. Whilst there was an impact on delivery of 
the work in the early part of the year during the initial lockdown, we are able to deliver 
the planned work by year-end (or shortly thereafter). There have been no changes to the 
planned work as a result of COVID-19; any changes to the plan were based purely on 
business/operational need. 

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT’S ANNUAL OPINION  

TIAA is satisfied that, for the areas reviewed during the year, Brecon Beacons 
National Park Authority has reasonable and effective risk management and internal 
control processes in place. A number of statutory recommendations relating to 
governance and leadership were raised by Audit Wales in February 2021. 
Implementation remained outstanding in March 2022 when the Authority was 
advised to seek assistance from Welsh Ministers to resolve the problems. On this 
basis, TIAA is unable to provide assurance on the effectiveness of the governance 
arrangements in place during 2021/22. 
This opinion is based solely on the matters that came to the attention of TIAA during 
the course of the internal audit reviews carried out during the year and is not an 
opinion on all elements of the risk management, control and governance processes 
or the ongoing financial viability or your ability to meet financial obligations which 
must be obtained by Brecon Beacons National Park Authority from its various sources 
of assurance. 

P
age 10



 

 
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Internal Audit Annual Report  
Page 2 

 

Internal Audit Planned Coverage and Output 

The 2021/22 Annual Audit Plan approved by the Audit and Scrutiny Committee was for 21 
days of internal audit coverage in the year.  

During the year there was one change to the Audit Plan and this change was approved by 
the Chief Executive. The planned audit of Governance – Strategic Control was not 
undertaken due to the publication of the Audit Wales report ‘Progress in Delivering 
Statutory Recommendations – Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’ published in 
March 2022. This concluded that: 

‘Delivering the Auditor General’s statutory recommendations has been hindered by 
continuing governance problems and a lack of capacity and the Authority should now seek 
the assistance of Welsh Ministers to address these problems. Specifically, we found that:  

 A step change in performance is needed to fully address the Statutory 
Recommendations;  

 Governance and decision-making processes are still not working effectively;  

 Differences in the interpretation and work of members is stopping the Authority 
from addressing the major problems it faces; and  

 Capacity and resilience remain areas of concern.’ 

Consequently it was agreed that it was not an appropriate time for the planned review of 
Governance by Internal Audit and that the work would instead be built into the audit plan 
for 2022/23. 

The planned work that has been carried out against the plan and the status of work not 
completed is set out at Annex A. 

No extra work was carried out which was in addition to that set out in the Annual Audit 
Plan. 
 

Assurance 

TIAA carried out six reviews, five of which were designed to ascertain the extent to which 
the internal controls in the system are adequate to ensure that activities and procedures 
are operating to achieve the Authority’s objectives. For each assurance review an 
assessment of the combined effectiveness of the controls in mitigating the key control 
risks was provided. Details of these are provided in Annex A and a summary is set out 
below. 

Assurance Assessments Number of Reviews Previous Year 

Substantial Assurance 1 0 

Reasonable Assurance 2 3 

Limited Assurance 1 0 

No Assurance 0 0 

The areas on which the assurance assessments have been provided can only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss and their 
effectiveness is reduced if the internal audit recommendations made during the year have 
not been fully implemented. 

We made the following total number of recommendations on our audit work carried out 
in 2021/22. The numbers in brackets relate to 2020/21 recommendations 

Urgent Important Routine 

3 (0) 2 (7) 7 (4) 

 

P
age 11



 

 
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Internal Audit Annual Report  
Page 3 

 

Audit Summary 

Control weaknesses: There was one area, Buildings Management and Maintenance 
reviewed by internal audit where it was assessed that the effectiveness of some of the 
internal control arrangements provided ‘limited assurance’. Recommendations were 
made to further strengthen the control environment in these areas as follows:  

 There are no written policies and procedures for the maintenance or 
management of buildings at either corporate or local levels which has resulted in 
inconsistent working practices regarding the reporting of repairs and monitoring 
the performance of works undertaken by maintenance contractors; 

 There are no clearly defined responsibilities regarding estate management at 
corporate level with no assigned senior management lead with responsibility for 
operational delivery; and 

 In June 2019 an inspection was undertaken by an external consultant of three 
buildings (Mountain Visitor Centre, Graig Y Visitor Centre and Cwm Porth). 
Following the inspection a number of recommendations were made by the 
external consultant, however there is no evidence to confirm that those 
recommendations have been implemented or that there has been any scrutiny 
of progress by a Committee of the Authority. 

The recommendations have all been accepted by management. 

Recommendations Made: We have analysed our findings/recommendations by risk area 
and these are summarised below. 

Risk Area Urgent Important Routine 

Directed 

Governance Framework 2 (0) 0 (3) 4 (2) 

Risk Mitigation 0 (0) 0 (0) 0 (0) 

Compliance 1 (0) 1 (2) 3 (1) 

Delivery 

Performance Monitoring 0 (0) 1 (1) 0 (0) 

Financial Constraint 0 (0) 0 (1) 0 (1) 

Resilience 0 (0) 0 0 (0) 

Operational Effectiveness Opportunities: One of the roles of internal audit is to add value 
and during the financial year we provided advice on opportunities to enhance the 
operational effectiveness of the areas reviewed and the number of these opportunities is 
summarised below. 

Operational 

1 (4) 

Independence and Objectivity of Internal Audit 

There were no limitations or restrictions placed on the internal audit service which 
impaired either the independence or objectivity of the service provided. 

Performance and Quality Assurance 

The following Performance Targets were used to measure the performance of internal 
audit in delivering the Annual Plan. 

Performance Measure Target Attained 

Completion of Planned Audits 100% 100% 

Audits Completed in Time Allocation 100% 100% 

Final report issued within 10 working days of receipt 
of responses   95% 100% 

Compliance with Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards 

100% 100% 

Ongoing quality assurance work was carried out throughout the year and we continue to 
comply with ISO 9001:2015 standards. An independent external review was carried out 
of our compliance of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) in 2017 and in 
particular to meet the requirement of an independent 5 year review, the outcome 
confirmed full compliance with all the standards. Our work also complies with the IIA-UK 
Professional Standards.  

P
age 12



 

 
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Internal Audit Annual Report  
Page 4 

 

Release of Report 

The table below sets out the history of this Annual Report. 

Date draft report issued: 1st July 2022 

Date final report issued: 3rd November 2022 

P
age 13



 

 
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Internal Audit Annual Report  
Page 5 

 

Annexes 

Annex A 
Actual against planned Internal Audit Work 2021/22 

System Type 
Planned 

Days 
Actual 
Days 

Assurance Assessment Comments 

ICT - Data Protection Act 2018 Compliance 3 3 Reasonable Final report issued 

Key Financial Controls - Payroll, Expenses and Fixed Assets Assurance 3 3 Substantial Final report issued 

Planning Assurance 3 3 Reasonable Final report issued 

Buildings Management and Maintenance Assurance 3 3 Limited Final report issued 

Governance Strategic Control Assurance 3 0 N/A Audit cancelled at client’s request 

Follow Up Follow Up 1 1 N/A Final report issued 

Annual Planning  1 1  Final report issued 

Annual Report  1 1  Final report issued 

Management  3 3   

 Total Days 21 18   

 

P
age 14



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

1 of 4 

To: Audit and Risk Committee, 18th November 2022 
From: Helen Cargill, Director of Audit, TIAA 
 
 

Buildings Management & Maintenance Internal Audit Report 
 
 

Decision Required YES ☒ / NO ☐ Agenda Item 5 

 

Recommendation 

Consider and note the contents of the report and enclosures. 

Approve the Buildings Management and Maintenance Internal Audit Report. 

 

Key Messages 

The audit of Buildings Management and Maintenance was undertaken as part of 
the 2021/22 internal audit plan to provide assurance that controls were in place 
and complied with, to support the annual assurance opinion on the governance, 
risk management and internal control arrangements of the Authority.  

 
 
Background 

 
TIAA were re-appointed as the Authority’s auditors in April 2022 for a three-year 
period to 2024/25. This report was completed as a part of the agreed 2021/22 
internal audit plan. 
 
Buildings Management and Maintenance (November 2022) 

The review considered the arrangements for building management and maintenance 

and the actions taken in response to the outcome of the report by the asset 

management consultants. The scope included a review of the work undertaken by the 

consultants and the management of any remedial actions raised.   

A limited assurance report was provided.  Three urgent, one important and one 
routine recommendation were raised. 
 
A copy of the report is attached as Appendix 1. The key strategic findings were: 

 There are no formal corporate policies and procedures for the management 
and maintenance of the Authorities buildings.  

 There are no clearly defined responsibilities and communication at corporate 
level regarding the management of the Authority’s buildings. 

 Following a survey undertaken of three sites in June 2019 by an external 
consultant, a number of recommendations were made but the 
recommendations have not been implemented and there is no evidence of 
monitoring or oversight of the delivery of the recommendations. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

2 of 4 

 There is no system in place to formally record, prioritise, cost and monitor the 
delivery of responsive maintenance works. 

 
All recommendations have been accepted and responsibilities and timescales for 
implementation have been included within the report. 
 
Relation to Authority Priorities 

 
The work of audit is intended to assist in the achievement of all corporate and 
service objectives and supports the annual governance statement. 
 
Impact Analysis 

 
Financial - There are no resource implications as a direct result of this report.  The 
external cost of the review will be met out of existing budget.  The carrying out of 
maintenance on properties owned and managed by the Authority will however have 
financial implications which will need to be considered as part of the budget planning 
process. 
 
Legal – No legal implications directly from this report.  There are however statutory 
compliance issues which need to be monitored through a robust systems and 
procedures. 
 
Diversity Implications - None directly from this report 
 
Human Resources - There are no HR implications as a direct result of this report. 
 
Sustainability – Energy efficiency and climate change issues will be considered and 
built into the Authority’s building management policy. 
 
Risk 

 
Internal audits address areas assessed as higher risk for the Authority and will 
recommend actions which will help to manage and reduce risks. Internal audit is one 
of the tools which is used by Members and management to gain assurance that 
internal controls are operating effectively. TIAA has been the Authority’s internal 
auditor since 2018 and is responsive to the needs and operating environment of the 
Authority in an important transitional year. 
 
Conclusion and Next Steps 

 

 That the contents of the report and the enclosures are considered by the 
Committee. 
 

  

Page 16



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

3 of 4 

Appendix One: Buildings Management and Maintenance Internal Audit Report 
2021-22 

 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 October 2022 

 

 

 

 

 Internal Audit  

  FINAL  

     

 Brecon Beacons National Park Authority    

 Assurance Review of Buildings Management and Maintenance    

 2021/22    

     

 

P
age 19



  

 

   
Brecon Beacons National Park 

Assurance Review of Buildings Management and Maintenance 
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT  KEY STRATEGIC FINDINGS 

 

 

 
There are no formal corporate policies and procedures for the estate 
department.  

 
There are no clearly defined responsibilities and communicated at corporate 
level regarding the management of the estate department. 

 

Following a survey undertaken of three sites in June 2019 by an external 
consultant, a number of recommendations were made but the 
recommendations have not been implemented and there is no evidence of 
monitoring or oversight of the delivery of the recommendations. 

 
There is no system in place to formally record, prioritise, cost and monitor 
the delivery of responsive maintenance works. 

 

ASSURANCE OVER KEY STRATEGIC RISK / OBJECTIVE  GOOD PRACTICE IDENTIFIED 

Risk R017 – Asset Management Arrangements (Reputational and financial risks associated 
with property and land assets). 

Risk R020 – Compliance failure /litigation: our estate (The risk to the authority brought 
about by a failure in health and safety compliance within the Authority’s land or buildings 
resulting in the potential for litigation). 

Risk R026 – Buildings condition and maintenance (lack of strategic continuity planning for 
BBNPA buildings and structures).  

 

 
A maintenance contract is in place until May 2022. 

 

   

SCOPE  ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the arrangements for building management and maintenance and 
the actions taken in response to the outcome of the report by the asset management 
consultants. The scope included a review of the work undertaken by the consultants and 
the management of any remedial actions raised.   

 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

3 1 1 0 
 

P
age 20



 

      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Assurance Review of Buildings Management and 

Page 2 

 

Assurance - Key Findings and Management Action Plan (MAP) 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed There are no written policies and procedures 
for the maintenance or management of 
buildings at either corporate or local levels 
which has resulted in inconsistent working 
practices regarding the reporting of repairs 
and monitoring the performance of works 
undertaken by maintenance contractors. 

A formal Buildings Management Policy 
and Procedure be prepared to include 
the planning of statutory compliance 
and preventative work, the process for 
reporting, recording and prioritising 
reactive repairs, the logging, costing 
and allocation of works and 
subsequent completion, reporting and 
monitoring of work including the 
identification of key performance 
indicators, customer feedback and 
complaints. 

1 This recommendation is fully accepted, 
and work has commenced to put an 
appropriate policy and procedures in 
place. 

31/11/22 Director of 
Planning & 
Place 

2 Directed There are no clearly defined responsibilities 
regarding estate management at corporate 
level with no assigned senior management 
lead with responsibility for operational 
delivery.   

Responsibilities regarding estate 
management be clearly defined at 
corporate level and communicated to 
relevant officers. In addition a named 
officer be appointed as the overall 
responsible lead for building 
maintenance within the organisation.  

1 A new senior management team was 
appointed to the Authority in April 
2022.  Responsibility for estate 
management at a corporate level now 
sits with the Executive Board and is 
overseen by an Operations Board.  
Senior management responsibility for 
operational delivery is now assigned to 
the Director of Planning & Place. 

31/08/22 Director of 
Planning & 
Place 

P
age 21



 

      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately. 

 2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should be 
taken at the earliest opportunity. 

 3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

      Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Assurance Review of Buildings Management and 

Page 3 

 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 

Comments 

Implementation 

Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 

Officer 

(Job Title) 

3 Directed In June 2019 an inspection was undertaken by 
an external consultant of three buildings 
(Mountain Visitor Centre, Graig Y Visitor 
Centre and Cwm Porth). Following the 
inspection a number of recommendations 
were made by the external consultant, 
however there is no evidence to confirm that 
those recommendations have been 
implemented or that there has been any 
scrutiny of progress by a Committee of the 
Authority. 

The recommendations made by the 
external consultant be collated, 
prioritised and action plans with strict 
deadlines developed and assigned to 
named officers to ensure 
implementation.  

1 All priority one recommendations were 
actioned on receipt of the report. Some 
additional recommendations have 
been completed during periods of 
building refurbishment and others will 
be addressed as part of a current 
externally funded project during 2022-
23.  Lower priority actions will be built 
into future maintenance programmes 
and implemented as funding is made 
available. Commercial Manager has 
hard copy of PPM plan with record of 
completions. 

Priority actions 
completed 

 

Lower priority 
actions: ongoing 

 

Commercial 
Manager 

5 Delivery There is no formal monitoring process in 
place for the oversight of delivery of 
responsive maintenance works. Performance 
is not recorded so as to ensure that value for 
money is achieved and resources are directed 
to areas of greatest priority. 

A central system be put in place to log 
repair works, monitor and record the 
performance of maintenance works 
and should include client feedback, 
contractor's response time, confirming 
and recording  the completion of 
works.   

2 New maintenance request form has 
been set up by Commercial Manager to 
record information from this 
recommendation.  Authority wide 
processes and procedures are currently 
being reviewed and developed in 
accordance with Recommendation 1 
above.  

30/04/22 Commercial 
Manager 

4 Directed A contract for maintenance and small works 
is in place. The contract is for the period 14th 
May 2019 to 13th May 2022 and was arranged 
and signed by the Commercial Manager on 
behalf of the organisation.   

Arrangements need to be made for a 
competitive tendering exercise to be 
completed prior to the end of the 
current arrangements on 13th May 
2022 to ensure continuity of 
arrangements or transition to a new 
contractor dependent on the outcome.  

3 This contract went out to competitive 
Tender in April 2022 via Sell2Wales, 
and the successful contractor has 
subsequently been appointed. 

30/04/22 Commercial 
Manager 

 

P
age 22



  

 

   
ADVISORY NOTE 

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures. 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  
Assurance Review of Buildings Management and Maintenance 

Page 4 

 

Operational - Effectiveness Matter (OEM) Action Plan 
 

Ref Risk Area Finding Suggested Action Management Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were raised. 

 

P
age 23



  

 

   
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Assurance Review of Buildings Management and Maintenance 
Page 5 

 

Findings 
 

Directed Risk:  

Failure to properly direct the service to ensure compliance with the requirements of the organisation. 

 

Ref Expected Key Risk Mitigation Effectiveness of 
arrangements 

Cross Reference 
to MAP 

Cross Reference 
to OEM 

GF Governance Framework 
There is a documented process instruction which accords with the relevant regulatory guidance, 
Financial Instructions and Scheme of Delegation. 

Not in place 1, and 2 - 

RM Risk Mitigation 
The documented process aligns with the mitigating arrangements set out in the corporate risk 
register. 

In place - - 

C Compliance 
Compliance with statutory, regulatory and policy requirements is demonstrated, with action taken 
in cases of identified non-compliance. 

Partially in place 3, and 4 - 

 

Other Findings 

 
There are no written policies and procedures for the maintenance or management of buildings at either corporate or local levels which has resulted in inconsistent working practices regarding the 
reporting of repairs and monitoring the performance of works undertaken by maintenance contractors. A formal Buildings Management Policy and Procedure needs to be prepared to include the 
following: 

 planning of statutory compliance and preventative work; 

  the process for reporting, recording and prioritising reactive repairs; 

 the logging, costing and allocation of works and subsequent completion; and 

 reporting and monitoring of work including the identification of key performance indicators, costs, customer feedback and complaints. 

P
age 24



  

 

   
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Assurance Review of Buildings Management and Maintenance 
Page 6 

 

Other Findings 

 
There are no clearly defined responsibilities regarding estate management at corporate level with no assigned senior management lead with responsibility for operational delivery. This is a 
consequence of the changes in staffing and structure that have been taking place over the past year or so. Responsibilities regarding estate management need to be clearly defined at corporate 
level and communicated to relevant officers. In addition, a named officer be appointed as the overall responsible lead for building maintenance within the organisation. 

 
In June 2019, an inspection was undertaken by an external consultant of three buildings (Mountain Visitor Centre, Graig Y Visitor Centre and Cwm Porth). Following the inspection a number of 
recommendations were made by the external consultant, however there is no evidence to confirm that those recommendations have been implemented. The recommendations made by the 
external consultant need to be collated, prioritised and action plans with strict deadlines developed and assigned to named officers to ensure implementation. Progress should be formally reported 
and monitored by an appropriate Committee. 

 
A contract for maintenance and small works is in place. The contract is for the period 14th May 2019 to 13th May 2022 and was arranged and signed by the Commercial Manager on behalf of the 
organisation. Arrangements need to be made for a competitive tendering exercise to be completed prior to the end of the current contract to ensure continuity of arrangements.   

 

  

P
age 25



  

 

   
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Assurance Review of Buildings Management and Maintenance 
Page 7 

 

Delivery Risk:  

Failure to deliver the service in an effective manner which meets the requirements of the organisation. 

 

Ref Expected Key Risk Mitigation Effectiveness of 
arrangements 

Cross Reference 
to MAP 

Cross Reference 
to OEM 

PM Performance Monitoring 
There are agreed KPIs for the process which align with the business plan requirements and are 
independently monitored, with corrective action taken in a timely manner. 

Not in place 5 - 

FC Financial Constraint The process operates within the agreed financial budget for the year. Partially in place - - 

R Resilience 
Good practice to respond to business interruption events and to enhance the economic, effective 
and efficient delivery is adopted. 

Not in place - - 

 

Other Findings 

 
There is no formal monitoring process in place for the oversight of delivery of responsive maintenance works. Performance is not recorded so as to ensure that value for money is achieved and 
resources are directed to areas of greatest priority. A central system needs to be put in place to log requests for repair works, the associated priority, the allocation and completion of tasks, 
including costs. 

No key performance indicators have been established to ensure that the work is undertaken efficiently and within agreed parameters and performance is not currently monitored or reported.  

 
There are no clearly defined reporting lines within the estate department to ensure effective reporting of any progress made to senior management, in particular progress made regarding the 
implementation of the recommendations raised by the external consultant following inspections on 25th June 2019. 

P
age 26



  

 

   
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Assurance Review of Buildings Management and Maintenance 
Page 8 

 

EXPLANATORY INFORMATION Appendix A 
 

Scope and Limitations of the Review 

1. The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of 
management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. As set out in 
the Audit Charter, substantive testing is only carried out where this has been 
agreed with management and unless explicitly shown in the scope no such work 
has been performed. 

Disclaimer 

2. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the 
auditor during the course of the review, and are not necessarily a comprehensive 
statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be 
made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not 
be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior 
written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has 
not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither 
owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report 
and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever 
nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

Effectiveness of arrangements 

3. The definitions of the effectiveness of arrangements are set out below. These 
are based solely upon the audit work performed, assume business as usual, and 
do not necessarily cover management override or exceptional circumstances. 

In place The control arrangements in place mitigate the risk from arising. 

Partially in place 
The control arrangements in place only partially mitigate the risk 
from arising. 

Not in place 
The control arrangements in place do not effectively mitigate the 
risk from arising. 

Assurance Assessment 

4. The definitions of the assurance assessments are: 

Substantial 
Assurance 

There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to 
ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating 
effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks 
are managed and process objectives achieved.  

Limited 
Assurance 

The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not 
operating effectively and significant improvements are required to 
ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved.  

No Assurance 
There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls 
requiring immediate action. 

Acknowledgement 

5. We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the 
course of our work. 

Release of Report 

6. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Stage Issued Response Received 

Audit Planning Memorandum: 14th February 2022 14th February 2022 

Draft Report: 21st April 2022 24th October 2022 

Final Report: 25th October 2022  

 

P
age 27



  

 

   
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Assurance Review of Buildings Management and Maintenance 
Page 9 

 

AUDIT PLANNING MEMORANDUM Appendix B 
 

Client: Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

Review: Buildings Management and Maintenance 

Type of Review: Assurance Audit Lead: Principal Auditor 
 

Outline scope (per Annual Plan): The review considers the arrangements for building management and maintenance and will consider the actions taken in response to the outcome of the report by 
the asset management consultants. The scope will include a review of the work undertaken by the consultants and the management of any remedial actions raised.   

 Directed Delivery 

 Governance Framework: There is a documented process instruction which accords 
with the relevant regulatory guidance, Financial Instructions and Scheme of 
Delegation. 

Performance monitoring: There are agreed KPIs for the process which align with 
the business plan requirements and are independently monitored, with 
corrective action taken in a timely manner. 

Detailed scope will consider: Risk Mitigation: The documented process aligns with the mitigating arrangements 
set out in the corporate risk register. 

Financial constraint: The process operates with the agreed financial budget for 
the year. 

 Compliance: Compliance with statutory, regulatory and policy requirements is 
demonstrated, with action taken in cases of identified non-compliance. 

Resilience: Good practice to respond to business interruption events and to 
enhance the economic, effective and efficient delivery is adopted. 

Requested additions to scope: None 

Exclusions from scope: As above 
 

Planned Start Date: 10/03/2022 Exit Meeting Date: 14/03/2022 Exit Meeting to be held with: Commercial Manager 

SELF ASSESSMENT RESPONSE 

Matters over the previous 12 months relating to activity to be reviewed Y/N (if Y then please provide brief 
details separately) 

Has there been any reduction in the effectiveness of the internal controls due to staff absences through sickness and/or vacancies etc? Y 

Have there been any breakdowns in the internal controls resulting in disciplinary action or similar? N 

Have there been any significant changes to the process? N 

Are there any particular matters/periods of time you would like the review to consider? N 

 

P
age 28



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

1 of 4 

To: Audit and Risk Committee, 18th November 2022 
From: Helen Cargill, Director of Audit, TIAA 
 
 

Internal Audit Follow Up Report (2021/2022) 
 

Decision Required YES ☒ / NO ☐ Agenda Item 6 

 

Recommendation 

Consider the contents of the report and enclosures 

Approve the Follow Up Audit (2021/2022) 

 

Key Messages 

The report summarises the progress made in implementing agreed 
recommendations.  

 
Background 

 
TIAA were re-appointed as the Authority’s auditors in April 2022 for a three-year 
period to 2024/25. This report was completed as a part of the agreed 2021/22 
internal audit plan. 
 
Follow Up Report (November 2022) 

An annual follow up review is undertaken as part of the agreed internal audit plan to 

confirm the progress that has been made in implementing the agreed actions from the 

previous internal audit year, in this case 2020/21. 

 
The report (Appendix 1) concluded that three of the 12 recommendations had been 
implemented.  It was noted that there had been delays arising from the restructure 
but that the implementation will fall within the remit of the Executive Board from April 
2022 onwards.  Now that the team is in post, the outstanding actions need to be 
addressed in the course of the organisational development work being led by the 
Executive Board. 
 
A further follow up review is included in the 2022/23 internal audit plan. 
 
Relation to Authority Priorities 

 
The work of audit is intended to assist in the achievement of all corporate and 
service objectives and supports the annual governance statement. 
 
 
 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

2 of 4 

Impact Analysis 

 
Financial - There are no resource implications as a direct result of this report.  The 
external cost of the review will be met out of existing budget. 
 
Legal – No legal implications directly from this report. 
Diversity Implications - None directly from this report 
 
Human Resources - There are no HR implications as a direct result of this report. 
 
Sustainability – There are no implications as a direct result of this report. 
 
Risk 

 
Internal audits address areas assessed as higher risk for the Authority and will 
recommend actions which will help to manage and reduce risks. Internal audit is one 
of the tools which is used by Members and management to gain assurance that 
internal controls are operating effectively TIAA has been the Authority’s internal 
auditor since 2018 and is responsive to the needs and operating environment of the 
Authority in an important transitional year. 
 
Conclusion and Next Steps 

 

 That the contents of the report and the enclosures are considered by the 
Committee  

  

Page 30



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

3 of 4 

Appendix One: Audit Follow up Report (2021/22) 

 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Internal Audit 

 

November 2022 

 

   
 

 
 

 
 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 

 Follow Up Review 

 2021/22 

FINAL 

P
age 33



 

 Brecon Beacons National Par Authority 
Follow Up Review  

Page 1 
 

Executive Summary 

Introduction 

1. This follow up review by TIAA established the management action that has been taken in respect of all recommendations arising from the internal audit reviews listed below at 
Brecon Beacons National Park Authority. The review was carried out in April 2022. 

Review Year 

Block 1 – GDPR 2018/19 

Block 2 – Project Management 2018/19 

Block 1 – Risk Management – Business Continuity Planning 2019/20 

Block 1 – 20/21 Wellbeing Strategy and Absence Management 2020/21 

Block 1 – 20/21 Key Financial Controls 2020/21 

Block 1 – 20/21 ICT Strategy 2020/21 

Block 2 – 20/21 Governance -Performance Management 2020/21 

Key Findings & Action Points 

2. The follow up review considered whether the management action taken addresses the control issues that gave rise to the recommendations. The implementation of these 
recommendations can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss. From the work carried out the following evaluations of the progress of 
the management actions taken to date have been identified. 

Evaluation Number of Recommendations 

Implemented 3 

Outstanding 9 

Considered but not Implemented - 

Not Implemented - 

P
age 34



 

 Brecon Beacons National Par Authority 
Follow Up Review  

Page 2 
 

 

3. The key issue identified is that a number of recommendations have not been implemented having been delayed due to the ongoing restructure but will fall within the remit of the 
Senior Leadership Team from April 2022 onwards.  

Scope and Limitations of the Review  

4. The review considered the progress made in implementing the recommendations made in the previous internal audit reports and established the extent to which management 
has taken the necessary actions to address the control issues that gave rise to the internal audit recommendations. 

5. The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and 
weaknesses that may exist. Neither should internal audit work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity, should there be any, although the audit 
procedures have been designed so that any material irregularity has a reasonable probability of discovery. Even sound systems of internal control may not be proof against collusive 
fraud. 

6. For the purposes of this review reliance was placed on management to provide internal audit with full access to staff and to accounting records and transactions and to ensure the 
authenticity of these documents. 

Disclaimer 

7. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all 
the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole 
or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other 
purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of 
whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

Release of Report 

8. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 9th June 2021 

Date management responses rec’d: 2nd November 2022 

Date final report issued: 4th November 2022 

 

  

P
age 35



 

 Brecon Beacons National Par Authority 
Follow Up Review  

Page 3 
 

Executive Summary 

Follow Up 

9. Management representations were obtained on the action taken to address the recommendations and limited testing has been carried out to confirm these management 
representations. The following matters were identified in considering the recommendations that have not been fully implemented: 

10. Block 1 – GDPR 

All recommendations have been implemented. 

11. Block 2 – Project Management 

Audit title Block 2 - Project 
Management 

Audit year 2018 Priority 2 

Recommendation The Grants Policy and Procedure be rewritten and approved by the Management Team. 

Initial management 
response 

Grants policy can be set in broad terms for the whole authority, but some detailed aspects of procedure can be determined by the grant funder’s 
requirements and also the scale of the project.   A policy can be drafted for consideration by Management team, ideally once the new Delivery 
Director is in post to allow an opportunity for him to have an input into its development.  Sustainable Development and Natural Resources Team 
Managers should have an input into the policy as their teams deliver the bulk of grant-funded projects.  Finance Manager also has a role to ensure 
sound financial management and accountability. 

Responsible Officer/s Executive Board Original implementation 
date 

31/03/2019 

 

Revised implementation 
date(s) 

TBC 

Latest Update This has not been completed due to lack of capacity but will fall within the remit of the Executive Board.  Some work areas such as Finance and IT 
have documentation in place.   

New implementation date TBC Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 
date has not been met. 

  

P
age 36



 

 Brecon Beacons National Par Authority 
Follow Up Review  

Page 4 
 

12. Risk Management – Business Continuity Planning – Block 1 
 

Audit title Risk Management – Business 
Continuity Planning – Block 1 

Audit year 2019 Priority 2 

Recommendation The Brecon Beacons National Park Authority Business Continuity Strategy be reviewed and approved by the Corporate Governance Team and the 
Authority. 

Initial management 
response 

Agreed. 

 

Responsible Officer/s Executive Board Original implementation 
date 

31/12/2019 

 

Revised implementation 
date(s) 

TBC 

Latest Update Responsibility for the BCP is now with the Executive Board.  The Operations Board will review existing plans and provide a recommended approach 
to the EB.  This will need to be scheduled into the workplan. Executive Board have had an initial discussion about whether sufficient plans are in 
place operationally in the event of an incident. All out of hours contact details have been checked. 

New implementation date TBC Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 
date has not been met. 

 

Audit title Risk Management – Business 
Continuity Planning – Block 1 

Audit year 2019 Priority 2 

Recommendation Each area of the organisation be required to maintain a log containing specific information including key contacts, key suppliers, staff accessibility, 
critical systems and the maximum downtime period of those systems. 

Initial management 
response 

Key managers should be required to ensure that up to date service continuity information relevant to their work area is maintained and accessible 
to other team members and their Director/CEO.  

Director/CEO to designate key managers. 

Responsible Officer/s CEO Original implementation 
date 

31/12/2019 

 

Revised implementation 
date(s) 

TBC 

Latest Update This has not been completed due to the lack of capacity but will fall within the remit of the Executive Board.  Some work areas such as Finance and 
IT have documentation in place. 

New implementation date TBC Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 
date has not been met. 

P
age 37



 

 Brecon Beacons National Par Authority 
Follow Up Review  

Page 5 
 

 

 

Audit title Risk Management – Business 
Continuity Planning – Block 1 

Audit year 2019 Priority 2 

Recommendation The Disaster Recovery and Communications Plans be updated annually or as key changes take place. 

Initial management 
response 

Agreed – S&P Manager to convene a meeting of key staff. 

Responsible Officer/s Executive Board 

 

Original implementation 
date 

31/03/2020 

 

Revised implementation 
date(s) 

TBC 

Latest Update This will be updated annually once a full refresh has been completed. 

New implementation date TBC Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 
date has not been met. 

 

13. Block 1 – 20/21 Wellbeing Strategy and Absence Management 

All recommendations have been implemented. 

 

14. Block 1 – 20/21 Key Financial Controls 

All recommendations have been implemented. 

  

P
age 38



 

 Brecon Beacons National Par Authority 
Follow Up Review  

Page 6 
 

15. 20/21 ICT Strategy – Block 1  

Audit title 20/21 ICT Strategy – Block 1 Audit year 2020 Priority 2 

Recommendation Regular IT resource assessments be undertaken to ensure that sufficient IT staffing resources are in place to support the Authority's increasing 
dependency on its IT systems and other technology solutions such as the electric vehicle fleet and energy efficiency solutions. 

Initial management 
response 

An urgent need for a temporary junior user support role has been confirmed for an initial 6 month period.  Recruitment is underway.  Budget 
resources have been provided for a permanent additional role pending the completion of a review of the IT support team structure by the IT team 
with the Transition Director.  A proposal to make the IT junior role permanent may need to be brought forward urgently if no suitable applicants 
for the temporary role are identified. Capital funding was provided for IT as a one-off grant from Welsh Government.   This enabled a more effective 
response to the pandemic and cyber incidents in 2020.  Longer term provision for IT capital resourcing needs to be put in place through 
implementing the new IT strategy. 

Responsible Officer/s IT Systems Officer / IT 
Network and Security 
Officer/CGT / Transition 
Director 

Original implementation 
date 

31/05/2021 

 

Revised implementation 
date(s) 

TBC 

Latest Update A developer post has now been added to the team.  Resource issues mean that a full review is not possible at this time, however a process of 
prioritisation of actions will be undertaken as part of the work to rebuild the organisation and this will be fed into that process.  The Manager role 
has just been updated and will be evaluated and filled.  

New implementation date TBC Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 
date has not been met. 

 

Audit title 20/21 ICT Strategy – Block 1 Audit year 2020 Priority 2 

Recommendation A capital budget for each year of the ICT Strategy be included within the IT Strategy. 

Initial management 
response 

Agreed – IT. 

Responsible Officer/s IT Systems Officer / IT 
Network and Security Officer 
/ Transition Director 

Original implementation 
date 

31/05/2021 

 

Revised implementation 
date(s) 

TBC 

Latest Update Resources are not currently available for this due to a cash standstill budget settlement and a 50% reduction in capital funding. 

New implementation date TBC Status Outstanding We cannot implement this action without additional 
resources.  

P
age 39



 

 Brecon Beacons National Par Authority 
Follow Up Review  

Page 7 
 

 
 

Audit title 20/21 ICT Strategy – Block 1 Audit year 2020 Priority 2 

Recommendation The costs of employment for the GIS specific resource currently contained within the IT cost centre be moved to the relevant planning centre to 
more accurately reflect the costs relating to the planning function. 

Initial management 
response 

The GIS role has a general corporate rather than IT Support function.  The position of the role within the organisational structure will be reviewed 
by CGT/the Transition Director to identify where it should sit within the structure. 

Responsible Officer/s Transition Director, IT 
Systems Officer, IT Network 
and Security Officer 

Original implementation 
date 

30/04/2021 

 

Revised implementation 
date(s) 

TBC 

Latest Update  This will be reviewed as part of the planning process to review priorities and deliverables in the light of adoption of the new Management Plan 

New implementation date TBC Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 
date has not been met. 

 

16. 20/21 Governance -Performance Management – Block 2 

Audit title 20/21 Governance -
Performance Management – 
Block 2 

Audit year 2020 Priority 2 

Recommendation New performance management system be implemented and training provided to relevant staff as a priority. 

Initial management 
response 

The Authority has procured the performance database developed by Pembrokeshire Coast NPA and the IT team will work with the Transition 
Director and the Interim Service Leads to adapt it for BBNPA's needs. Managers will be trained to input and manage their own data and suitable 
reports will be designed. The database will start to be used for Q1 performance reporting. 

Responsible Officer/s Executive Board 

 

Original implementation 
date 

01/07/2021 

 

Revised implementation 
date(s) 

TBC 

Latest Update Due to lack of senior management capacity this work programme has been deferred but will be a key task of the Programme Manager who is due 
to start work in April 2022.  This was evidenced by the Corporate Plan for 2022/23.  The system adopted is likely to be light touch given resource 
constraints and will need to be underpinned by the business change required to ensure adoption.  

New implementation date TBC Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 
date has not been met. 

P
age 40



 

 Brecon Beacons National Par Authority 
Follow Up Review  

Page 8 
 

 

Audit title 20/21 Governance -
Performance Management – 
Block 2 

Audit year 2020 Priority 2 

Recommendation All performance areas and targets be assigned to an appropriate member of staff to ensure data and targets are monitored on an ongoing basis 
throughout the year. 

Initial management 
response 

Agreed. 

Responsible Officer/s Executive Board. Original implementation 
date 

01/07/2021 

 

Revised implementation 
date(s) 

TBC 

Latest Update Corporate Plan 22/23 adopted.  Reports being provided to the Finance and Performance Committee.  

New implementation date TBC Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target 
date has not been met. 

 

17. The following recommendations have been implemented. 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 

Officer 

Due Date Status 

Block 1 - GDPR A detailed Data Protection Act 2018 Compliance Plan be 
documented as intended that details all of the necessary 
actions that need to be completed to ensure full compliance 
with the Act. 

2 Data Protection 
Officer/Monitoring Officer 

31/12/2018 Implemented 

Block 1 – Wellbeing 
Strategy and Absence 

Management 

Managers be reminded of the importance of completing a 
return to work interview with Staff returning from sick leave. 

2 HR Officer 09/10/2020 Implemented 

Block 1 – 20/21 Key 
Financial Controls 

A timetable be put in place to ensure that the Corporate Plan 
can be finalised before the budget for the Authority is formally 
approved in line with the Financial Regulations.  This should 
recognise the requirement to propose a levy by 15th February 
each year 

2 Chief Executive 20/10/2020 Implemented 

P
age 41



 

 Brecon Beacons National Par Authority 
Follow Up Review  

Page 9 
 

 

P
age 42



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

1 of 4 

To: Audit and Risk Committee, 18th November 2022 
From: Helen Cargill, Director of Audit, TIAA 
 
 

Internal Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 

 

Decision Required YES ☒ / NO ☐ Agenda Item 7 

 

Recommendation 

Consider the contents of the report and enclosures 

Approve the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2022/23 

 

Key Messages 

The fieldwork has been planned for 2022/23 in order to support the annual 
assurance opinion on the governance, risk management and internal control 
arrangements of the Authority  

 
Background 

 
TIAA were re-appointed as the Authority’s auditors in April 2022 for a three-year 
period to 2024/25. Each year an audit plan is provided to the Committee 
summarising the proposed audit coverage for the year that will support the Head of 
Internal Audit opinion at the year end. This forms a part of the wider governance 
framework of the Authority. 
 
Annual Pan 2022/23 

The Audit Plan for 2022/23 (Appendix 1) has been informed by a discussion with the 

Chief Executive in the context of a period of significant ongoing change to ensure that 

planned coverage for the year is focussed on the key audit risks, and that the coverage 

will enable a summary annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion to be provided. 

 
The plan provides 25 days of audit coverage consistent with the internal audit 
contract. 
 
Relation to Authority Priorities 

 
The work of audit is intended to assist in the achievement of all corporate and 
service objectives and supports the annual governance statement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

2 of 4 

Impact Analysis 

 
Financial - There are no resource implications as a direct result of this report.  The 
external cost of the review will be met out of existing budget. 
 
Legal – No legal implications directly from this report. 
Diversity Implications - None directly from this report. 
 
Human Resources - There are no HR implications as a direct result of this report. 
 
Sustainability – There are no implications as a direct result of this report. 
 
Risk 

 
Internal audits address areas assessed as higher risk for the Authority and will 
recommend actions which will help to manage and reduce risks. Internal audit is one 
of the tools which is used by Members and management to gain assurance that 
internal controls are operating effectively TIAA has been the Authority’s internal 
auditor since 2018 and is responsive to the needs and operating environment of the 
Authority in an important transitional year. 
 
Conclusion and Next Steps 

 

 That the contents of the report and the enclosures are considered by the 
Committee  

 That the Annual Plan for 2022/23 is approved by the Committee 
  

Page 44



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

3 of 4 

Appendix One: Internal Audit Annual Plan for 2022/23 

 
 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 

    INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

 

   

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
   

Indicative Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 
   

2022/23 

   

August 2022   DRAFT 

P
age 47



 

 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Indicative Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 

Page 1 
 

OVERVIEW 
Introduction 

The Audit Plan for 2022/23 has been informed by a discussion with the Chief Executive in the context of a period of significant ongoing change to ensure that planned coverage for the year is 
focussed on the key audit risks, and that the coverage will enable a summary annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion to be provided. 

Key Emerging Themes 

This year will continue to be another challenging year for publically funded organisations in terms of income and also the pressures on service delivery. There are a number of operational issues 
that have also come to prominence; we have identified a number of key areas which require consideration when planning internal audit coverage. 

Providing Assurance during the COVID-19 pandemic 

From the outset, we successfully transitioned to new and remote ways of working without any diminution of the service and we recognise that many if not all of our clients have had to implement 
changes in the way that they work. We continue to consider any gaps in control or exposures that have arisen as a result of this. Whilst many measures have largely been relaxed, it is not 
inconceivable that further measures might be implemented to stem any increases in cases. We continue to adopt a hybrid approach with a mix of remote and on-site working and tailor this 
approach to client requirements and the nature of each assignment.    

Adequacy of the planned audit coverage 

The reviews identified in the audit plan for 2022/23 support the Head of Internal Audit’s annual opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s framework of governance, 
risk management and control as required by TIAA’s charter. The reviews have been identified from your assurance framework, risk registers and key emerging themes. 

Funding pressures: Continued budget and cash management pressures impacting the Authority in response to current inflationary pressures. 

COVID-19 pandemic: It is evident that the impact of the pandemic in will carry through into 2022/23, not least the effect it will continue to have on health, the economy and employment. The 
knock-on impacts could affect delivery of programmes, staff wellbeing and the Authority’s financial position. 

Cyber-crime: A continuing theme linked to fraudulent activity. There have been targeted attacks in other sectors; no one organisation should think that they are unlikely to be targeted and 
should take steps to assure themselves over the robustness of their overall arrangements. The widespread adoption of remote working and increased online service delivery during the 
pandemic has allowed more opportunities for phishing, malware, and ransomware attacks.  

Governance Arrangements: Significant changes have been made to the Authority’s governance framework including a new committee structure, new scheme of delegation and a new 
management and officer structure in response to a number of statutory recommendations relating to governance and leadership raised by Audit Wales in February 2021. 

Climate Change: Public bodies within Wales are taking action to reduce their own carbon emissions and working with partners and communities to tackle the impact of climate change in line 
with Welsh Government carbon reduction targets. 

P
age 48



 

 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Indicative Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 

Page 2 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN  
Audit Strategy Methodology 

We adopt a proprietary risk-based approach to determining your audit needs each year which includes reviewing your risk register and risk management framework, the regulatory framework, 
external audit recommendations and previous internal audit work for the organisation, together with key corporate documentation such as your business and corporate plan, standing orders, 
and financial regulations. For 2022/23, we have conducted an analysis of the key risks facing the sector and client base more broadly to inform our annual planning. The Audit Plan is based 
predominantly on our understanding of the inherent risks facing the Brecon Beacons National Park Authority and those within the sector and has been developed with the Chief Executive. Our 
approach is based on the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing which have been developed by the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) and incorporate the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). It was agreed that only a one year audit plan would be developed for 2022-23 due to the volume of change currently taking place at the Brecon Beacons 
National Park Authority. A three year strategy will be developed for 2023-24 onwards. 

Risk Prioritisation 

Each year an updated risk assessment is carried out to ensure the Audit Plan and Strategy remains fully aligned with the key risks facing Brecon Beacons National Park Authority. We take in to 
account any emerging or heightened risks that are facing the sector, to ensure that the work of internal audit remains appropriately focused. Links to specific strategic risks are also contained in 
the Internal Audit Plan. 

Internal Audit Plan 

Following discussions with the Chief Executive, the Audit Annual Plan (Appendix A) has been produced. This sets out the reviews that will be carried out, the planned times and the high-level 
scopes for each of these reviews.  

The Annual Plan will be subject to ongoing review and could change as the risks change for the organisation and will be formally reviewed with senior management and the Audit and Risk 
Committee mid-way through the financial year or should a significant issue arise. 

The overall agreed time for the delivery of each assignment within the Annual Plan includes: research; preparation and issue of terms of reference; site work; production and review of working 
papers; and reporting.  

The Annual Plan has been prepared on the assumption that the expected controls will be in place.  

The total number of days required to deliver the Audit Plan is as agreed in the contract between TIAA and the Brecon Beacons National Park Authority. This number of days is fixed and it is TIAA’s 
responsibility to deliver the Audit Plan for this number of days. Where Brecon Beacons National Park Authority agrees additional work the required number of days and the aggregate day rate 
will be agreed in advance with the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer and will be clearly set out in the terms of reference for the additional review(s). 

Release of Report 

The table below sets out the history of this plan. 

Date plan issued: 19th August 2022 

P
age 49



 

 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Indicative Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 

Page 3 
 

APPENDIX A: ANNUAL PLAN – 2022/23 
 

Quarter Review Type Days High-level Scope 

3 Governance Framework – 
Strategic Control Arrangements 

Advisory 7 Rationale 

A new governance framework has been put in place including a new committee structure with 
new terms of reference and a new scheme of delegation. 

Scope 

The review considers the role and operation of the Authority, its sub-committees and senior 
management team; remit letter, standing orders, financial regulations; and scheme of 
delegation. The review will also consider the arrangements for reporting to the Welsh 
Government. 

3 Procurement Assurance 4 Rationale 

To ensure arrangements in place are effective and efficient 

Scope 

The review considers the application of and compliance to the Authority’s procurement 
arrangements as set out in financial regulations and procedures. Where non-compliant, the 
review will identify the obstacles preventing their application. Procedures will also be reviewed 
in context of good practice and efficiency and effectiveness. 

3 Roles of Members and Officers in 
Delivery of the Audit Wales 
Action Plan 

Advisory 4 Rationale 

Requirement to deliver statutory recommendations 

Scope 

The review will consider the arrangements in place to monitor and deliver the Audit Wales action 
plan. Meetings will be held with Members and Officers with responsibility for delivery to discuss 
their role in the delivery of the actions, how this is evidenced and reported, the priority attached 
to the responsibilities and what action is taken in the event of slippage. The audit will not confirm 
that actions have been completed as this will be the subject of a follow up review by Audit Wales.   

P
age 50



 

 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Indicative Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 

Page 4 
 

Quarter Review Type Days High-level Scope 

4 Financial Systems – Payroll and 
Budgetary Control 

Assurance 4 Rationale 

Ongoing assurance over expenditure 

Scope 

The review will consider the controls in place to ensure that the addition, deletion and temporary 
or permanent changes to payroll data are appropriately authorised, accurate and processed on 
a timely basis and unusual variations are identified and investigated prior to payment.  The 
review will also confirm that the agreement for provision of payroll services is current and that 
services are being delivered as agreed. 

The review will also consider the arrangements in place to set and communicate budgets to 
budget holders, that regular and timely management is available for the management of budgets, 
the identification and action taken in respect of budget variances and reporting within the 
governance structure. 

2 Follow-up Follow up 1 Follow-up of implementation of agreed actions from audit reports, ensuring the organisation is 
implementing recommendations, and providing reports to the Audit and Risk Committee. 

1 Annual Planning Management 1 Assessing the Authority’s annual audit needs. 

4 Annual Report Planning/Reporting 1 Reporting on the overall conclusions and summary opinion based on the year’s audits and other 
information and providing input to the Annual Governance Statement. 

1-4 Audit Management Planning/Reporting 3 This time includes: meeting client management, overseeing the audit plan, reporting and 
supporting the Audit and Risk Committee, liaising with External Audit and Client briefings 
(including fraud alerts, fraud digests and committee briefings). 

  Total days 25  

P
age 51



 

 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Indicative Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 

Page 5 
 

APPENDIX C: INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER  
The Need for a Charter 

The Audit Charter formally defines internal audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility. It establishes internal audit’s position within Brecon 
Beacons National Park Authority and defines the scope of internal audit 
activities. The establishment of the Audit Charter is a requirement of the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and approval of the charter 
is the responsibility of the Audit and Risk Committee.  

The Role of Internal Audit 

The main objective of the internal audit activity carried out by TIAA is to 
provide, in an economical, efficient and timely manner, an objective 
evaluation of, and summary opinion on, the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk management and 
control. TIAA is responsible for providing assurance to Brecon Beacons 
National Park Authority’s governing body (being the body with overall 
responsibility for the organisation) on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the risk management, control and governance processes. 

Standards and Approach 

TIAA's work will be performed with due professional care, in accordance 
with the requirements of the PSIAS and the IIA standards which are 
articulated in the International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF). 

Scope 

All Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s activities fall within the remit 
of TIAA. TIAA may consider the adequacy of controls necessary to secure 
propriety, economy, efficiency and effectiveness in all areas. It will seek to 
confirm that Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s management has 
taken the necessary steps to achieve these objectives and manage the 
associated risks. It is not within the remit of TIAA to question the 
appropriateness of policy decisions; however, TIAA is required to examine 
the arrangements by which such decisions are made, monitored and 
reviewed. 

TIAA may also conduct any special reviews requested by the board, Audit 
and Risk Committee or the nominated officer (being the post responsible 
for the day-to-day liaison with TIAA), provided such reviews do not 
compromise the audit service’s objectivity or independence, or the 
achievement of the approved audit plan. 

Access 

TIAA has unrestricted access to all documents, records, assets, personnel 
and premises of Brecon Beacons National Park Authority and is authorised 
to obtain such information and explanations as they consider necessary 
to form their opinion. The collection of data for this purpose will be carried 
out in a manner prescribed by TIAA’s professional standards, Information 

Security and Information Governance policies. 

Independence 

TIAA has no executive role, nor does it have any responsibility for the 
development, implementation or operation of systems; however, it may 
provide independent and objective advice on risk management, control, 
governance processes and related matters, subject to resource 
constraints. For day-to-day administrative purposes only, TIAA reports to 
a nominated officer within Brecon Beacons National Park Authority and 
the reporting arrangements must take account of the nature of audit work 
undertaken. TIAA has a right of direct access to the chair of the board, the 
chair of the Audit and Risk Committee and the responsible accounting 
officer (being the post charged with financial responsibility). 

To preserve the objectivity and impartiality of TIAA’s professional 
judgement, responsibility for implementing audit recommendations rests 
with Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s management.  

Conflict of Interest 

Consultancy activities are only undertaken with distinct regard for 
potential conflict of interest. In this role we will act in an advisory capacity 
and the nature and scope of the work will be agreed in advance and strictly 
adhered to.  

We are not aware of any conflicts of interest and should any arise we will 
manage them in line with TIAA’s audit charter and internal policies, the 
PSIAS/IIA standards and Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s 
requirements. 

Irregularities, Including Fraud and Corruption 

TIAA will without delay report to the appropriate regulator, serious 
weaknesses, significant fraud, major accounting and other breakdowns 
subject to the requirements of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002. 

TIAA will be informed when evidence of potential irregularity, including 
fraud, corruption or any impropriety, is discovered so that TIAA can 
consider the adequacy of the relevant controls, evaluate the implication 
of the fraud on the risk management, control and governance processes 
and consider making recommendations as appropriate. The role of TIAA is 
not to investigate the irregularity unless commissioned to do so. 

Limitations and Responsibility 

Substantive testing will only be carried out where a review assesses the 
internal controls to be providing ‘limited’ or ‘no’ assurance with the prior 
approval of Brecon Beacons National Park Authority and additional time 
will be required to carry out such testing. Brecon Beacons National Park 
Authority is responsible for taking appropriate action to establish whether 
any loss or impropriety has arisen as a result of the control weaknesses. 

Internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 
against misstatement or loss. The limitations on assurance include the 
possibility of one or more of the following situations, control activities 
being circumvented by the collusion of two or more persons, human error, 
or the overriding of controls by management. Additionally, no assurance 
can be provided that the internal controls will continue to operate 
effectively in future periods or that the controls will be adequate to 
mitigate all significant risks that may arise in future.  

The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with 
management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied 
upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither 
should internal audit work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of 
fraud or irregularity, should there be any, although the audit procedures 
have been designed so that any material irregularity has a reasonable 
probability of discovery. Even sound systems of internal control may not 
be proof against collusive fraud. 

Reliance will be placed on management to provide internal audit with full 
access to staff and to accounting records and transactions and to ensure 
the authenticity of these documents. 

The matters raised in the audit reports will be only those that come to the 
attention of the auditor during the course of the internal audit reviews 
and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses 
that exist or all the improvements that might be made. The audit reports 
are prepared solely for management's use and are not prepared for any 
other purpose. 

P
age 52



 

 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
Indicative Audit Annual Plan 2022/23 

Page 6 
 

Liaison with the External Auditor  

We will liaise with Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s External 
Auditor. Any matters in the areas included in the Annual Plan that are 
identified by the external auditor in their audit management letters will 
be included in the scope of the appropriate review.  

Reporting 

Assignment Reports: A separate report will be prepared for each review 
carried out. Each report will be prepared in accordance with the 
arrangements contained in the Terms of Reference agreed with TIAA and 
which accord with the requirements of TIAA’s audit charter and PSIAS/IIA 
standards.  

Progress Reports: Progress reports will be prepared for each Audit and 
Risk Committee meeting. Each report will detail progress achieved to date 
against the agreed annual plan. 

Follow-Up Reports: We will provide an independent assessment as to the 
extent that priority 1 and 2 recommendations have been implemented. 
Priority 3 recommendations are low-level/housekeeping in nature and it 
is expected that management will monitor and report on implementation 
as considered appropriate. 

Annual Report: An Annual Report will be prepared for each year in 
accordance with the requirements set out in TIAA’s audit charter and 
PSIAS/IIA standards. The Annual Report will include a summary opinion of 
the effectiveness of Brecon Beacons National Park Authority’s 
governance, risk management and operational control processes based 
on the work completed during the year. 

Other Briefings: During the year Client Briefing Notes, Benchmarking and 
lessons learned digests will be provided. These are designed to keep the 
organisation abreast of in-year developments which may impact on the 
governance, risk and control assurance framework. 

Assurance Assessment Gradings 

We use four levels of assurance assessments as set out below. 

Substantial 
Assurance 

There is a robust system of internal controls operating 
effectively to ensure that risks are managed and 
process objectives achieved. 

Reasonable 
Assurance 

The system of internal controls is generally adequate 
and operating effectively but some improvements are 
required to ensure that risks are managed and 
process objectives achieved.  

Limited 
Assurance 

The system of internal controls is generally 
inadequate or not operating effectively and 
significant improvements are required to ensure that 
risks are managed and process objectives achieved.  

No 
Assurance 

There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core 
internal controls requiring immediate action. 

Data Protection 

TIAA has policies, procedures and processes in place to comply with all 
associated regulation and legislation on information security, which is 
underpinned by mandatory annual awareness training for all staff. To 
carry out our role effectively, we need to obtain information that is 
reliable, relevant and sufficient to support our findings and 
recommendations. The collection of data, particularly sensitive personal 
data, is minimised and is not shared with unauthorised persons unless 
there is a valid and legal requirement to do so. We have clear policies on 
the retention of data and its appropriate, controlled disposal. TIAA has a 
fully robust Information Security Management System that meets all the 
requirements of ISO27001:2013. 

Quality Assurance 

TIAA recognises the importance of Internal Audit being controlled at each 
stage to ensure that we deliver a consistent and efficient Internal Audit 
service that is fully compliant with professional standards and also the 
conditions of contract. We operate a comprehensive internal operational 
quality review process to ensure that all Internal Audit work is carried out 
in accordance with these standards. These quarterly reviews are part of 
our quality management system which has IS0 9001:2015 accreditation.  

Audit and Risk Committee Responsibility 

It is the responsibility of the Brecon Beacons National Park Authority to 
determine that the number of audit days to be provided and the planned 
audit coverage are sufficient to meet the Committee’s requirements and 
the areas selected for review are appropriate to provide assurance against 
the key risks within the organisation. 

By approving this document, the Audit and Risk Committee is also 
approving the Internal Audit Charter. 

Disclaimer 

The matters raised in this planning report, along with those raised in our 
audit and annual reports, are only those that came to the attention of the 
auditor during the course of our work and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the 
improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely 
for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole or 
in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility 
to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is 
not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any 
duty of care to any other party who may receive this report and 
specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of 
whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

Performance Standards 

The following Performance Targets will be used to measure the 
performance of internal audit in delivering the Annual Plan: 

Performance Measure Target 

Completion of planned audits. 100% 

Audits completed in time allocation. 100% 

Draft report issued within 10 working days of exit 
meeting. 

100% 

Final report issued within 10 working days of receipt of 
responses. 

100% 

Compliance with TIAA’s audit charter and PSIAS/IIA 
Standards. 

100% 

 

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  18-11-22 

1 of 4 

To: Audit and Risk Committee, 18th November 2022 
From: Catherine Mealing-Jones, Chief Executive 
 
 

Audit Wales Action Plan Report 
 
 

Decision Required YES ☐ / NO ☒ Agenda Item 8 

 

Recommendation 

Note the update information and the latest version of the Action Plan  

 

Key Messages 

As part of their assistance to BBNPA, Welsh Government have now appointed a 
consultant to work with us on governance and capacity and resilience issues.   

 

Good progress is being made with the action plan, but the capacity and resilience 
issues which face the Authority are systemic and will take time to address.  

 

Given the breadth of the issues, a clear approach to prioritisation will need to be 
adopted in order for the Authority to tackle things in the right order to ensure 
maximum impact and to reduce risk.   

 
  

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  18-11-22 

2 of 4 

Background 

 
Implementing the Action Plan is a key element of our organisational development 
and essential to shaping BBNPA to deliver on our forthcoming management plan.  
Completing the statutory recommendations from the February 2021 Audit Wales 
report is essential; Audit Wales will conduct a further review which will report by the 
end of the financial year which will assess whether this has been done. 
The Audit and Risk Committee is charged with monitoring the plan.  
 
Relation to Authority Priorities 

 
The Action Plan underpins all aspects of our work.  
 
Impact Analysis 

 
Financial – there are no direct financial implications. 
 
Legal – no direct implications 
 
Diversity – no direct implications 
 
Human Resources – staff are being regularly updated on progress with the plan. 
 
Sustainability – no direct implications. 
 
Risk 

 
There are a number of risks on the corporate risk register which relate to 
organisational capacity, resilience and processes. 
 
Conclusion and Next Steps 

 
Good progress is being made with the plan, however there are a number of 
outstanding items which will need to be progressed in order to satisfy Audit Wales 
that the statutory recommendations from their February 2021 report have been 
implemented.  The consultant appointed by Welsh Government to work with us on 
the plan will provide important support which will enable BBNPA to holistically 
consider governance and capacity issues and build an organisational development 
plan which will underpin our vision and management plan. 
 
  

Page 56



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  18-11-22 

3 of 4 

Appendix One: Action Plan BBNPA 2022 

 
 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Final draft for agreement with Welsh Government and Audit Wales 
 

1 
 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority - Audit Wales Action Plan  

In response to recommendations made in Audit Wales reports: 

 Brecon Beacons National Park Authority – Delivery of the Change Programme - issued February 2021 

 Progress in delivering Statutory Recommendations – Brecon Beacons National Park Authority – issued March 2022 

 

Recommendation Actions agreed with Audit 
Wales 

Status Welsh 
Government 
Assistance 
Required 

Milestones 

Vest scrutiny of 
delivery of the Action 
Plan in the Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Has been regularly 
monitored by Audit and 
Scrutiny Committee and will 
now be monitored by the 
Audit and Risk Committee 
under the new scheme of 
delegation.  

Ongoing Ministerial agreement to 
Welsh Government actions 
in the 2022 plan 
 
Welsh Government to 
identify a suitable 
consultant to work 
alongside the Audit and 
Risk Committee and who 
can work with BBNPA to 
address the key issues 

2022 Plan to be agreed by all by 
end July 2022. Monitoring by 
Audit and Risk Committee 
quarterly and in detail by the 
Audit and Risk Committee 
Working Group (to be set up 
following the AGM on 1 July).  
 
CEO to develop a consultancy 
specification by 22 July 2022 -
complete 
 
Consultant in place by September 
2022 - complete 

Review and clarify 
roles and 
responsibilities of 
members and 
officers to ensure 
standards for conduct 

Implement the new Scheme 
of Delegation and 
Committee Structure  

 
Ensure regular monitoring of 
how these are working 

Ongoing - New scheme 
approved and beginning 
to be implemented.   
Committee structure 
commences from AGM 
1 July’22. 

 
 

AGM consideration 1 July  
 
Monitoring by Audit and Risk 
Committee Quarterly 
 

P
age 59



Final draft for agreement with Welsh Government and Audit Wales 
 

2 
 

Recommendation Actions agreed with Audit 
Wales 

Status Welsh 
Government 
Assistance 
Required 

Milestones 

and required 
behaviour are clear 
and unambiguous, 
including what to do if 
things are not 
working; 

through pre meetings and 
structured lessons learned / 
meeting reflection  

 
 
 
 
 

Review key documents – 
Member/officer protocols, 
code of conduct, standing 
orders etc  

 

Scheme of Delegation 
and committee structure 
already reviewed.  

 Remaining key documents to be 
reviewed by AGM 2023 

CEO to review the 
Monitoring Officer / solicitor 
role with a view to making 
the role a permanent part of 
the establishment  

Paper being prepared 
by CEO for decision by 
BBNPA. 

 To be presented for agreement 
by BBNPA on 29 July 2022 – role 
now agreed - Complete 

Amendment of terms and 
conditions of Welsh 
Government appointed 
members 

Completed May 2022 
 

Amendment of terms and 
conditions of Welsh 
Government appointed 
members 
 
BBNPA Chair to be part of 
the recruitment process for 
the new Welsh 
Government Members.  
 
Financial support to 
BBNPA to run outreach 
events for new members. 

Complete 
 
 
 
 
Autumn 2022 - complete 
 
 
 
 
September- December 2022 
complete 
 

P
age 60



Final draft for agreement with Welsh Government and Audit Wales 
 

3 
 

Recommendation Actions agreed with Audit 
Wales 

Status Welsh 
Government 
Assistance 
Required 

Milestones 

 
 
September 2022 

 Support for local authority 
appointments 

 Advice to local authorities 
on appointment members 
 

Complete 

Develops a 
programme of 
training and support 
to ensure all 
members and 
officers understand 
their responsibilities 
and their expected 
behaviours; 

Induction programme for 
Members to ensure these 
aspects are appropriately 
covered.  
 
Regular review and lessons 
learned processes to be 
embedded. 
 
Senior officers to be part of 
induction process and 
ongoing training so mutually 
understood standards are 
set. 
 
Authority to ensure that 
officers understand the 
scheme of delegation in 
respect of responsibilities 
and that behavioural 
standards are embedded in 
staff appraisal systems.  

Initial induction 
programme for new 
Members has 
completed.  Mop up 
sessions being arranged 
and evaluation also in 
progress. 
 
 
Induction programme 
includes attendance of 
key officers.  
 
Initial conversation held 
with Academi Wales re 
longer term support.  
 
WLGA training modules 
identified as possible 
option 9 June 2022 
 
 

Assistance to identify 
suitable training for 
members. This would need 
to cover key aspects such 
as respect, equality and 
diversity, micro behaviours 
bullying and harassment.   

Implement induction programme 
from June 2022 with senior team 
involvement - Complete 
 
Review and lessons learnt of 
induction programme by end July 
 
 
Staff training on scheme of 
delegation by December 2022 
 
Review Scheme of Delegation by 
end 2022 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 61



Final draft for agreement with Welsh Government and Audit Wales 
 

4 
 

Recommendation Actions agreed with Audit 
Wales 

Status Welsh 
Government 
Assistance 
Required 

Milestones 

 
 

Ensures that all key 
policies for standards 
of conduct and 
required behaviours 
are strictly adhered 
to;  

Support has been in place 
for appropriate action being 
taken when required 
standards are not met. 
 
Emphasis on standards and 
conduct as part of induction 
of new Members 
 
Ensure new members are 
provided with relevant 
policies and understand the 
NPA procedures for raising 
concerns about conduct and 
behaviour 

Closer involvement of 
Chair of Standards 
Committee in other 
Authority meetings. 
 
Authority has tackled 
and sought assistance 
with Members whose 
behaviours were not 
meeting required 
standards.  
 

Amendment to terms and 
conditions for Welsh 
Government members to 
emphasise  zero tolerance 
approach to bullying, 
harassment, appropriate 
language/behaviour 

Terms and conditions for new 
WG members - complete 
 
 
For new local authority members 
from induction in June 2022 
 
For new Welsh Government 
members from appointment end 
2022 

Review how changes 
to members and 
officers 
responsibilities and 
roles are working in 
practice within the 
next 12 months 

Process of regular review 
and lessons learned.  
 
 
Build into internal audit 
programme for review. 

To commence from 
BBNPA EGM 1 July 
 
 
 
Included as advisory 
review in BBNPA 
Internal Audit Plan 
2022/23 

 Review of implementation and 
understanding of the scheme of 
delegation by December 2022 (as 
part of Audit Wales follow up). 
 
Internal audit by March 23 

P
age 62



Final draft for agreement with Welsh Government and Audit Wales 
 

5 
 

Recommendation Actions agreed with Audit 
Wales 

Status Welsh 
Government 
Assistance 
Required 

Milestones 

Ensuring all relevant 
papers to Authority 
meetings are written 
in plain, simple and 
clear language that 
explains technical 
terms, avoids ‘jargon’ 
and clearly sets out 
the rationale for 
recommendations 

Authority approach to 
papers to be reviewed.  
 
New Executive Board to 
operate as a clearing step 
for any papers going to the 
Authority.  
 
Feedback to be sought on 
papers as a matter of 
routine. 

Aim is to embed this 
during 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Designing feedback 
process over summer 
22 to include staff, EB 
and members. 

 Complete review by end 2022. 
Design new approach by end 
October 2022 
 
Implement EB clearance process 
by end October 2022. 
 
 
 
Implement feedback loop by end 
October 2022.  

 

Recommendation Actions agreed with Audit 
Wales 

Status Welsh Government 
Assistance Required 

Milestones 

Recommend that the 
Authority urgently 
requests the 
assistance of Welsh 
Ministers to address 
the significant 
governance 
problems. 

Given the changes in 
Membership at the Authority 
CEO BBNPA to develop a 
refreshed action plan to 
address both the statutory 
recommendations from Feb 
21 and the issues raised in 
Mar 22 AW reports. 

Ongoing -  
 
CEO wrote to Minister 
for Climate Change on 
15 March. Minister 
offered assistance 20 
April  BBNPA is now 
working closely with 
both Welsh Government 
and Audit Wales. 
 

Respond to request to 
provide assistance 
 
Respond to request for 
termination of 
appointments 
 
 
Support to develop an 
appropriate plan and 

Ministerial agreement to assist – 
April 2022 
 
WG assigned an official to work 
with BBNPA and AW to support 
delivery of the plan – April 2022 
 
WG action on request to 
terminate appointments – March -
July 2022 
 

P
age 63



Final draft for agreement with Welsh Government and Audit Wales 
 

6 
 

Recommendation Actions agreed with Audit 
Wales 

Status Welsh Government 
Assistance Required 

Milestones 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Discussion of success 
criteria has been 
initiated.  Likely to be 
based around Audit 
Wales follow up review 
before end March 2023. 
 
 
 

ensure that it is acceptable 
to Ministers.  
 
 
WG assistance to define 
some success criteria to 
signal completion of the 
plan from a BBNPA / AW / 
WG perspective 

BBNPA Executive Board 
reviewed draft plan 19 May 22 
 
BBNPA CEO share draft plan 1 
with WG and AW 20 May 22 
 
Draft plan 2 shared WG 7 June 
 
Draft plan 3 to WG/AW 14 June 
 
Complete plan and agree with 
Authority/ WG/ AW - July 2022 
 
Define and agree success criteria 
- July 2022 

Seek assistance that 
enables clarification 
of the roles and 
expectations of all 
Members and 
corresponding help in 
addressing the 
development and 
support needs of 
Welsh Government-
appointed members 

Amendment of terms and 
conditions for new WG 
appointed members 
 
 
 
 

 Welsh Government 
amended terms and 
conditions for newly 
appointed WG members 
 
 
 
 
 

Complete 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Recruit new WG members  WG recruitment of 3 new 
members and a reserve list  

September – December 2022 
 

 New induction programme 
for new members  

 WG to consider relevant 
points arising from the 

New induction programme rolled 
out from June 2022 

P
age 64



Final draft for agreement with Welsh Government and Audit Wales 
 

7 
 

Recommendation Actions agreed with Audit 
Wales 

Status Welsh Government 
Assistance Required 

Milestones 

 
Review and evaluation of 
new induction programme 
 
 

review of the induction 
programme  
 

 
Review and evaluation of new 
induction programme by end July. 
 

 Member appraisal and 
assessment of 
recommendations for an 
extension of term to be 
reviewed. 

  October 2022 

 Embed the new Scheme of 
Delegation and NPA 
Committee Structure as a 
foundation of good 
governance in the Authority 

 Welsh Government to 
assist with consultancy 
support to the new Audit 
and Risk Committee for c.6  
months to work with 
Members and the 
executive to support this 
action.  

May - December 2022 

 Progress with this plan to be 
regularly communicated to 
staff by CEO and senior 
team.  

   

Capacity 
 
 

BBNPA Executive Board to 
develop a plan to address 
capacity issues1 

BBNPA team are 
currently working to 
identify capacity gaps. 

For discussion. 
Welsh Government to work 
with BBNPA to consider 

Recruitment and induction of new 
senior team members – June 
2022 

                                                           
1 BBNPA capacity issues are wide and significant, from a need to urgently address our accommodation needs, an approach to how we to manage our sites – ie in terms of 
the site opportunities, commercial strategy development and gaps in the organisation around business development, ability to engage with stakeholders, in particular the 
agricultural community, ability to work in partnership around busy places and exploring possibilities to address our corporate services resilience and capability issues.  
BBNPA faces a number of capacity challenges related to its relative administrative complexity vs the other WNPs and this also needs to be surfaced and considered.  
 

P
age 65



Final draft for agreement with Welsh Government and Audit Wales 
 

8 
 

Recommendation Actions agreed with Audit 
Wales 

Status Welsh Government 
Assistance Required 

Milestones 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

New areas are coming 
to light  
CEO and new 
management team (May 
2022) in place, S151 
officer now in post,  
options being explored 
for HR support 
 

what support could be 
provided to address 
capacity gaps. The work is 
likely to extend beyond the 
terms of the action plan.  
 
 
 
 

 
Identification of capacity gaps – 
ongoing work likely to extend 
beyond the terms of the Action 
Plan 
 
Initial review of capacity and 
capability by the CEO to be an 
agenda item for NPA September 
22 
 
 
 

  Monitoring officer 
contract extended 
pending paper on longer 
term to NPA 
 

 Paper to NPA on extension of 
MO post scheduled for 29 July 
2022 
 
Permanency of MP post 
confirmed by end July.  
 
Complete 
 

 Agreed that diversification of 
income is a key element of 
building capacity in the 
organisation  
 

BBNPA to initiate an 
income diversification 
advisory group and  
 
Develop a commercial 
strategy 
 

 Income diversification advisory 
group to be established by end 
October 2022. 
 
Commercial strategy by March 
2023 
 
 

P
age 66



Final draft for agreement with Welsh Government and Audit Wales 
 

9 
 

Recommendation Actions agreed with Audit 
Wales 

Status Welsh Government 
Assistance Required 

Milestones 

Set up of charitable trust to be 
explored by end Dec 2022. 
 

 Staff to be regularly 
engaged around the status 
of the plan. 
 

Regular programme of 
internal comms 
designed. 
 

  

  Wellbeing strategy 
placed at the heart of 
the business plan.  
 

 Delivery of the business plan by 
March 2023 
 
MOJ casework being engaged to 
work with the Executive Board 
September 22-January 23 

Re-build tourism 
staff capacity R2 We 
recommend that the 
Authority: • review 
current tourism staff 
capacity in line with 
the aspirations of 
Future Beacons, its 
National Park 
Management Plan; • 
re-build tourism and 
staff capacity to allow 
delivery of the goals 
of Future Beacons; 
and • consider the 

Whilst a separate Audit 
Action Plan to address the 
recommendations from the 
Sustainable Tourism Audit 
relating to capacity will also 
be picked up in this plan: 
 
 
 

 
 
 

To discuss with BBNPA.2 
 

Presentation of the audit report 
by AW to NPA on 29 July 2022 
 
Complete 
 
Action plan being worked on by 
Director of Planning and Place 
and team 

                                                           
2 Eg WG to be sighted on some of the ambition eg partnership with Black Mountains College, potential developments of the GeoPark etc.  

P
age 67



Final draft for agreement with Welsh Government and Audit Wales 
 

10 
 

Recommendation Actions agreed with Audit 
Wales 

Status Welsh Government 
Assistance Required 

Milestones 

need for additional 
staff capacity in 
appropriate 
specialisms eg 
communications and 
data analysis staff. 
 
 
 

Annex A – completed actions 

Recommendation Actions agreed with Audit 
Wales 

Status Welsh 
Government 
Assistance 
Required 

Milestones 

Develop and agree 
an action plan with 
clear milestones for 
delivering the Change 
Programme; 

Agreed change programme 
no longer appropriate for the 
authority. From the Mar ’22 
AW report ‘the change 
programme noted in the 
Auditor General’s report of 
February 2021, which the 
Authority has rightly moved 
on from’ 3 

Closed None   

Regularly monitor the 
implementation of the 
action plan (at least 
monthly) to ensure 

Monthly meetings in place. Closed Agreed Welsh Government  
presence at monitoring 
meetings with Audit Wales 
and that BBNPA / AW /WG 

 

                                                           
3 March 22 report page 7 section 11 

P
age 68



Final draft for agreement with Welsh Government and Audit Wales 
 

11 
 

Recommendation Actions agreed with Audit 
Wales 

Status Welsh 
Government 
Assistance 
Required 

Milestones 

actions are 
progressed and the 
Change Programme 
concluded; 

will work together to a 
single plan.  

Reviewing the role of 
the Park Policy 
Forum, how it works 
in practice and in 
relation to the 
constitution and the 
proper decision 
making of the 
executive (Authority); 

Agreed new scheme of 
delegation.  

Closed? 
Policy Forum is not a 
formal part of the new 
committee structure.  
Fora and working 
groups are now formed 
at the discretion of the 
CEO and chaired as 
appropriate.  

 CEO will stand up groupings as 
required.  Likely to continue a 
regular more informal 
engagement with Members and 
officers on emerging issues and 
policy 

Address poor morale 
amongst staff by 
ensuring officers 
have sufficient line 
manager and wider 
organisational 
support. 

Wrap work on addressing 
poor morale into follow up to 
March ’22 report.  

Closed None  

 

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-22 

1 of 4 

To: Audit and Risk Committee, 18th November 2022 
From: Mark Jones, Audit Wales 
 
 

2021-22 Statement of Accounts – Audit Wales’ Oral Update 
 

Decision Required YES ☐ / NO ☒ Agenda Item 9 

 

Recommendation 

Note the contents of this oral update 

 

 

 

 
  

Key Messages 

For members to receive an oral update on the 2021-22 Statement of Accounts 
from Audit Wales 

 

Page 71

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

1 of 8 

To: National Park Authority, Audit and Risk Committee, 18th November 2022 
From: Rotimi Akinsiku, Portfolio & Programme Manager 
 
 

Risk Management Report 
 

Decision Required YES ☐ / NO ☒ Agenda Item 10 

 

Recommendations 

To note the corporate risks at the end of Oct 22 as set out in Annexes 1  

To note the areas for proposed discussion. 

 

Key Messages 

This report updates members on the status of the corporate risks at the end of Oct 
22   

 

 
Background 

The Audit and Risk Committee’s responsibilities for risk are set out in its purpose that 

can be accessed here 

 

BBNPA approach to risk, its risk appetite and risk tolerance has a significant part to 

play in terms of supporting the Corporate Plan. Risk management is also key to 

achieving compliance with the highest workplace health and safety standards, 

regulations, and directives. We ensure that any events which could be detrimental 

are identified as risks in our risk register and are managed to reduce their likelihood 

and / or impact. 

 

Without a robust risk management framework, we will be at risk of failing to deliver 

our corporate objectives. The corporate risks register is informally reviewed on an 

ongoing basis by Directors and Executive Board members, and formally reported on 

a quarterly basis to Executive Board 

 

The report contains an Executive Summary with key messages on key risks with the 

detailed information contained in annex A.  

 

Relation to Authority Priorities 

 

Our corporate risks register sets out the key risks facing the Authority and relates 

directly with the corporate plan.  

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 10

https://governance.beacons-npa.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=2360


Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

2 of 8 

Demonstrating Best Value 

 

Effective risk management helps the Authority to meet its statutory obligations and  

discharge its services.  

 

Impact Analysis 

 

Financial – Financial risks are covered by the section 151 officer but there are no 

financial implications arising directly from this report. 

 

Legal - There are no legal implications as a direct result of this report. A separate 

legal risk register is maintained. 

 

Diversity - There are no specific diversity issues as a direct result of this report. 

 

Human Resources – Loss of key staff and capacity issues within BBNPA continue to 

be a challenge and are detailed in the Chief Executive’s review paper presented to 

the September NPA. The current resource position will limit the Authority’s ability to 

effectively deliver the Management Plan.  

 

Sustainability – There are no sustainability implications as a direct result of this 

report. 

 

Risk - We particularly note the current high level of inflation and the implications this 

has in terms of cost control, particularly in respect of projects costs, energy costs 

and pay settlement, alongside potentially reduced income, will require careful 

monitoring in the short to medium term. 

Page 74



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

3 of 8 

 
Risks Update – Oct 2022 

 
1 Executive Summary 

 
1.1 Risk Overview:  

There are thirty-two corporate risks included on the Register (see Annex1). 
There has been one addition to the Register and five risks relating to the direct 
impact of Covid-19 were closed. 
 

1.2  Risks statuses:  
Eleven of the risks are classed red due to the probability and impacts, and 
twenty-one risks rated amber. Although there has not been any significant 
movement in risk status to date, the residual impact of COVID-19 pandemic 
continues to impact some of risk on the Register.  

 

1.3 Emerging risks and issues:   
 Inflation Risk’ - there is a risk that a range of inflationary pressures (pay, 

utilities, supplies and services etc.), coupled with a flat National Park Grant, 

will continue to place pressure on the Authority’s ability to fund and deliver its 

Corporate Plan. 

 The capacity, capability and process issues which have been exacerbated by 

the issues highlighted by Audit Wales in their reports feature on the risks and 

issues. 

 As the new leadership team seek to grip the organisation and shape it to 

deliver the future agenda, new process and systemic issues continue to 

emerge.  

1.4 Areas for discussion:  
 
 Red risks and key amber risks. 

 
 At the Executive Board meeting on 4 November discussion of a renewable’s 

proposal being developed just outside the park boundary raised two key 
issues. Firstly, whether the Authority has a charging regime in place for all 
services which it may provide and secondly the issue of how to ensure that 
there is an appropriate separation of responsibilities internally when we are 
being asked for advice as well as being consulted or delivering a statutory 
service on the same issue.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

4 of 8 

Annex 1: Corporate Risk register  

Risk Register 

COVID-19 

Risk 
ID 

Risk Description 
Probabi

lity  
RA
G 

Impact Comments 
Date of 
Update 

Date 
Clos
ed 

Owner 

R003 
Fraud and Cyber 

Security 

Threats to the 
Authority's services, 

functions and 
financial standing 
due to cyber-crime 
including fraud and 

data ransom 

Possible 
Amb

er 
Severe  

Downgraded 
to possible 
given the 

recent 
upgrades to 
IT systems 

Staff 
awareness 
good after 
increasing 

coverage of 
threats and 

training. 
Systems 

hardened. 
Further work 

done on 
email 

security 
blocking all 

email 
attachments 

with 
executable 
extensions. 

Users 
alerted to 

31/10/2
022 

 Kevin Booker & 
Rhys Davies 

P
age 76



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

5 of 8 

cyber 
phishing 

simulated 
attack. Need 

to keep 
awareness 

high 

Corporate Services     

Corporate Governance Risks     

Risk 
ID 

Risk Description 
Probabi

lity  
RA
G 

Impact Comments 
Date of 
Update 

  Owner 

R007 
Members' compliance 
with code of conduct  

Reputation and 
financial impacts 

Possible 
Amb

er 
Severe 

Equality and 
diversity 

training has 
delivered to 
members, 
AW Action 

plan in place 
to support 

appropriate 
behaviour. 
January 

2022 - no 
change 

31/10/2
022 

  Marc Ronan 

P
age 77



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

6 of 8 

R008 
Failure in Information 

Governance 
arrangements  

Information 
governance Lack of 

compliance 
monitoring across 

all business/service 
areas 

possible 
Amb

er 
Severe 

Permanent 
and full time 

DPO and 
MO 

arrangement 
has been 

put in place 
to oversee 

improvemen
ts to process 
and systems 

for 
compliance 
monitoring 

31/10/2
022 

  Marc Ronan 

R009 
Business Continuity 
Plan and Disaster 

Recovery Plan 

Risk to Authority 
services through 

inadequate 
business continuity 

and disaster 
recovery 

arrangements 

possible 
Amb

er 
Severe 

Upgraded to 
possible - 

cyber 
incident 

tested DRP 
and 

triggered 
required 

changes to 
IT security 

arrangement
s to 

reinforce 
BCP & DRP. 

New BCP 
and DRP 

being drawn 
up from 
lessons 

learned in 
cyber 

31/10/2
022 

  

Rhys Davies & 
Kevin Booker - IT   
Overall Business 

Continuity Planning - 
Executive Board 

P
age 78



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

7 of 8 

incident. Not 
advanced 

due to other 
pressures. 

Overall BCP 
arrangement
s need to be 
reinforced 
and the 
Internal 
Audit 

recommend
ation to 
review 

business 
units for 
critical 

activities 
needs to be 
completed.  

P
age 79



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

8 of 8 

R010 

Lack of continuity of 
membership of the 

National Park 
Authority  

Risk to delivery of 
organisational 

objectives through 
requirement to 

induct new 
members in 

decision-making 
and encourage 
them to become 

familiar with 
organisational 

history and culture 

Likely  
Amb

er  
Moderat

e 

Upgraded to 
likely 

following 
another 

change from 
Powys and 
anticipating 

more 
changes 
following 

local 
government 
elections. 

Worked with 
Welsh 

Government 
and WLGA 
to update 

the Protocol 
for local 

authorities 
appointing 

members to 
NPAs to 

encourage 
them to 

consider key 
skills, 

commitment, 
and 

capacity. 
Three Park 

video 
planned to 

highlight role 

31/10/2
022 

  Stephanie Davies 

P
age 80



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

9 of 8 

to candidate 
and existing 
councillors. 

Induction will 
be planned 

for June 
2022. No 
change 

following 
changes in 
November 

2021 

R011 Financial constraint 

Constraint on 
Authority’s ability to 
deliver objectives 

and services due to 
restricted financial 

settlement and 
income 

high Red Severe 

No change, 
settlement 
for 22/23 

and further 
years is flat 
vs inflation 
of c.10% 
and there 

are 
significant 
budgetary 
demands 

which may 
limit the 

options for 
increased 

NPA funding 
by Welsh 

Government

31/10/2
022 

  Jo Williams 

P
age 81



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

10 of 8 

, plus 
inflationary 
pressures 
on goods, 
services, 

and wages. 
Mitigation is 
via focus on 
budgetary 
discipline 

and 
efficiency in 

the short 
term plus 
seeking 

additional 
income 
sources 

independent 
of Welsh 

Government 
in the longer 

term. 

P
age 82



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

11 of 8 

R012 Corporate capacity 

Constraint on 
Authority’s ability to 

deliver services, 
meet obligations 

and realise 
opportunities due to 

officer capacity 

Very 
Likely 

Red 
Very 

Severe 

Risk 
remains 

severe and 
the 

departure of 
key staff has 
continued to 

have an 
impact in 

22/23. 
Systems 

and 
processes 

are 
immature, 
and the 

Authority 
needs to 

change to 
deliver our 
emerging 

Managemen
t Plan and to 
respond to 

new 
challenges 

and 
opportunities

. Without 
corporate 

capacity this 
is extremely 
challenging. 
There is also 
an impact on 

31/10/2
022 

  
Catherine Mealing-

Jones 

P
age 83



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

12 of 8 

officer 
morale and 
as flagged 

by our 
external 

health and 
safety 

advisor, 
gaps in 
officer 

capacity are 
also opening 

us up to 
other risk. 1. 

Regular 
process 

review -e.g., 
Health and 
Safety to 

tackle areas 
of greatest 

risk 
2. senior 
team are 
working 

together and 
seeking to 
implement 

new 
governance 
arrangement
s (Executive 

Board, 
Operations 
Board etc.) 

P
age 84



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

13 of 8 

3. Work with 
team and 

managers to 
backfill 
where 

appropriate 
and look at 

plan B 
arrangement

s 
4. Specific 

plans in 
place for 

DS; finance 
and planning 

5. Welsh 
Gov 

appointed 
consultant 

has included 
an element 

connected to 
capacity in 

his 
specification 

which will 
provide 
some 

additional 
advice 

6. 
Communicat
ion to staff of 

changes 
including 

P
age 85



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

14 of 8 

incoming 
team, plans 

for 
backfilling 
and plan B 

arrangement
s 

7. Corporate 
planning 

process to 
review work 
capacity vs 
budget and 

priorities 
8. Extension 
of temporary 
arrangement

s to cover 
team 

leadership 
9. 

Commercial 
and income 
strategy to 

be advanced 
asap in 
22/23 to 
begin to 
bolster 

resilience 
10. Work 

with WG to 
ensure 

overheads 
are included 

P
age 86



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

15 of 8 

in 
programme 

work.  

P
age 87



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

16 of 8 

R013 Welsh Language Act 

Risk to the 
Authority's financial 

and reputational 
standing through 
non-compliance 

with Welsh 
Language Act and 

standards 

possible 
Amb

er  
Moderat

e 

Following 
meeting in 
December, 

we have 
some 

actions to 
take to be 

fully 
compliant 

with 
regulations. 

All should be 
achievable.  

31/10/2
022 

  Jodie Bond 

R014 
 Inadequate general 

Reserves 

Risk to delivery of 
services and 
viability of the 

Authority through 
being unable to 

meet exceptional 
unforeseen 
mandatory 

expenditure re: 
planning, health and 
safety, redundancy, 
etc. due to reserves 

being at a level 
deemed inadequate 
by the Section 151 

officer and 
consequent 

requirement to 
issue S114 notice 

possible red 
Very 

Severe  

The move 
from funding 
in advance 
to claiming 

in arrears for 
Welsh 

Government 
specific 

grants such 
as SLSP, 

puts 
additional 

pressure on 
the general 

reserve/cash
flow. 

Earmarked 
reserves, 

which assist 
the cash 

31/10/2
022 

  Jo Williams 

P
age 88



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

17 of 8 

balance are 
being spent 

down in 
most cases 
as projects 

are 
delivered. 

S106 funds 
are 

expected to 
be disbursed 

also. An 
increased 

risk of 
cashflow 
problems 

may require 
withdrawals 
from notice 
accounts. 

perceptions 
of 

uncertainty 
and risk 
appetite 

determine 
the 

appropriate 
minimum 

balance of 
the General 

Reserve. 
This should 
be reviewed 

within the 

P
age 89



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

18 of 8 

next 6 
months. 

R015 
 Governance 
arrangements 

Risk that the 
Authority's 

governance 
arrangements are 
not adequate to 

meet its statutory, 
regulatory, and 

operational 
requirements 

Possible 
Amb

er 
Moderat

e 

 
New 

Governance 
structures 
reviewed 

and 
implemented

.  

31/10/2
022 

  
Catherine Mealing-

Jones 

P
age 90



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

19 of 8 

R016 
Uncertainty of 

Authority 
accommodation  

The continuing 
uncertainty over the 

future of Plas y 
Fanon /changing 
accommodation 

arrangements are 
disruptive to its 
service delivery 

Possible red 
Very 

Severe 

Exploring 
possibility of 

feasibility 
funding for 
finding new 

accommodat
ion in a town 

centre. 
Discussions 

ongoing 
about needs 

of the 
organisation 
and intent is 
to procure 

the services 
of a 

consultant to 
undertake 

the 
assessment 

study of 
options.  

31/10/2
022 

  
Catherine Mealing-

Jones  

P
age 91



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

20 of 8 

R017 
Asset management 

arrangements 

Reputational and 
financial risks 

associated with 
property and land 

assets 

Possible 
Amb

er  
Severe 

Work 
ongoing to 
implement 

the 
recommend
ations by the 

internal 
auditors. 

Developmen
t of property 
managemen
t policy and 
procedures 
underway.  

Lack of 
capacity for 

land 
managemen

t, lease 
agreements. 

31/10/2
022 

  Gareth Jones 

R018 Legal issues 

The risk that legal 
proceedings bring 
negative financial 
and reputational 

impacts 

Possible 
Amb

er 
Moderat

e 

The 
Authority is 
now taking 
high level 

legal risks to 
ASC 

meetings 
and keeping 
under review 

under 
exempt 
items 

 
no change 

31/10/2
022 

  Marc Ronan 

Health and Safety     

P
age 92



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

21 of 8 

Risk 
ID 

Risk Description 
Probabi

lity  
RA
G 

Impact Comments 
Date of 
Update 

  Owner 

R019 
Compliance 

failure/litigation: 
external  

The risk to the 
Authority brought 

about by a failure in 
health and safety 
compliance in the 

park resulting in the 
potential for 

litigation 

Possible 
amb
er 

Very 
Severe 

No change 
 

Procedures 
in place to 

monitor H&S 

31/10/2
022 

  Marcia Zurian 

R020 
Compliance 

failure/litigation: our 
estate 

The risk to the 
Authority brought 

about by a failure in 
health and safety 
compliance within 

the Authority's land 
or buildings 

resulting in the 
potential for 

litigation 

Possible 
Amb

er 
Very 

Severe 

This risk is 
increasing 
due to staff 

capacity 
issues.  

 
Internal 

process in 
place 

31/10/2
022 

  
Marcia Zurian 

(updated by CMJ) 

Information and IT Risks     

Risk 
ID 

Risk Description 
Probabi

lity  
RA
G 

Impact Comments 
Date of 
Update 

  Owner 

R021 Hardcopy RM 
Lack of hardcopy 

key document 
management 

Possible 
Amb

er 
Moderat

e 
No change 

31/10/2
022 

  
Kevin Booker & 

Rhys Davies 

P
age 93



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

22 of 8 

R022 Spatial data RM 

Poor decision 
making due to lack 
of ownership and 
upkeep of spatial 

data 

possible 
Amb

er 
Moderat

e 

Colleting 
need for 
action 

around file 
managemen
t and spatial 
aspect to file 
storage will 

benefit 
spatial file 

managemen
t over all 

31/10/2
022 

  
Kevin Booker & 

Rhys Davies 

Delivery / Countryside     

Risk 
ID 

Risk Description 
Probabi

lity  
RA
G 

Impact Comments 
Date of 
Update 

  Owner 

R025 

Paths and RoW 
erode/deteriorate - 

lack of funding/mgmt. 
plans, env impacts 

also, environmental 
impacts 

Likely 
Amb

er 
Moderat

e 

More use of 
paths over 
lockdown is 
leading to 

higher 
maintenance 

burdens 

31/10/2
022 

  
Simone Lowthe -

Thomas 

P
age 94



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

23 of 8 

R026 
Buildings condition 
and maintenance 

Lack of strategic 
continuity planning 

for BBNPA 
buildings & 
structures 

Possible red 
Moderat

e 

No planned 
building 

maintence in 
place, 

repairs are 
done on a 
reactive 
basis. 

Property 
managemen
t policy and 
procedures 

currently 
being 

prepared. 
 

Up to date 
on 

compliance 
matters 
(electric 

certificates 
etc) 

 
linked to 

R017 

31/10/2
022 

  Gareth Jones 

P
age 95



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

24 of 8 

R027 
Disrupted access to 
Gunpowder Works 

Risk that accesses 
dispute disrupts 

Authority's ability to 
deliver its work 

programme and/or 
has an impact on 

reputation, finance, 
and other resources 

Possible Red Severe 

Draft 
approved 
Heads of 

Terms 
finalised and 
to be sent to 
owner week 
commencing 

18.10.21 

31/10/2
022 

  
Simone Lowthe -

Thomas 

RO2
7a 

Disrupted access to 
Gunpowder Works 

Risk that landslip 
has disrupted safe 
access to the SAM 

Very 
Likely 

Red Severe 

Measures 
are in place 
to safeguard 
the public, 
and restore 

access 
along the 

track 

31/10/2
022 

  
Simone Lowthe -

Thomas 

R028 
Short term contracts 
and role continuity 

Business continuity 
and reputation risk 

arising from 
increasing reliance 

on fixed term 
project-focussed 

contracts 

Very 
Likely 

Red Severe 

Continues to 
be an issue 

putting 
pressure on 

the 
Authority's 
ability to 

deliver. All 
acting up 

arrangement
s are being 
extended to 
31 March 

31/10/2
022 

  
Catherine Mealing-

Jones  

P
age 96



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

25 of 8 

2023 to 
maintain 

capacity as 
much as 
possible. 

R02 

9 

Potential for conflicts 
over land-use 

priorities 

Risk that emerging 
multiple demands 
for land – nature 
recovery, energy 

generation, tourism 
begin to conflict 

Likely 
Amb

er 
Moderat

e 

Requires the 
Authority to 
set out our 

priority 
policy and 
decision -
making 

processes to 
enable use 
of internal 

Chinese wall 
and 

demonstrate 
transparent 
decision- 
making 

processes   

07/11/2
022 

 
Simone Lowthe-

Thomas  

Planning     

Risk 
ID 

Risk Description 
Probabi

lity  
RA
G 

Impact Comments 
Date of 
Update 

  Owner 

P
age 97



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

26 of 8 

R029 
Risk from Members 
overturning planning 
recommendations 

Members' 
prerogative to 

overturn decisions 
but may have 

budgetary impact if 
challenged 

Possible 
amb
er 

Severe 

No change. 
Dialogue 

and training 
continuing 

with existing 
and new 

member to 
seek to 
manage 

ongoing risk 

31/10/2
022 

  Gareth Jones 

R032 

Degradation of 
cultural and historical 

heritage, including 
buildings at risk. 

Lack of resource Possible 
Amb

er 
Moderat

e 

Draft HEAP 
prepared for 
consultation 
and agreed 
the heritage 

in places 
grant will be 

delivered 
through the 

SDF 
mechanism. 
Developmen

t 
managemen

t and 
enforcement 
supported 
through 
Building 

Conservatio
n and 

Archaeology 
Officers. No 

change 

31/10/2
022 

  Gareth Jones 

P
age 98



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

27 of 8 

R033 
DM Service 

Performance 

Risk to the Park's 
special qualities and 

Authority's 
reputation through 
poor DM service 

performance 

possible 
amb
er 

Severe 

Capacity 
issues 

currently 
being 

addressed 
through 

recruitment 
and use of 

consultants. 
Review of 
processes 

and 
procedures 
underway to 
help improve 

service 
delivery. 

31/10/2
022 

  Gareth Jones 

R034 
Enforcement Service 

Performance 

Risk to the park's 
environment 
through poor 

enforcement service 
performance 

possible 
amb
er 

Moderat
e 

Capacity 
issues 
remain. 

Review of 
planning 

service and 
processes 
underway.  

31/10/2
022 

  Gareth Jones 

R035 
Personal safety of 

staff 

Risk to staff safety 
in relation to site 

visits and 
interaction to 

members of the 
public 

Possible 
Amb

er 
Severe 

No change. 
The focus 
on remote 
working is 

on 
undertaking 

meetings 
virtually and 
complying 
with covid 

31/10/2
022 

  Gareth Jones 

P
age 99



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

28 of 8 

requirement
s when on 

site. Review 
of lone 
working 

policy and 
procedures 
underway. 

R036  Internal applications 

Risk to finance, 
reputation, and staff 

relations from 
necessity for 

internal applications 
since new legal 

advice 

possible 
Amb

er 
Moderat

e 

No change. 
The 

Authority 
has a robust 
mechanism 
in place to 

ensure 
applications 
are handled 
transparentl

y 

31/10/2
022 

  Gareth Jones 

R037 
timetable, soundness, 
and adoption of LDP 

Risks to the 
timetable for 

delivery, tests of 
soundness and 

ultimate adoption of 
LDP2 

very 
likely  

Red severe 

Timetable 
paused 

whilst WG 
and BBNPA 
consider the 
implications 

of NRW 
guidance on 
pollution and 

riverine 
SAC's and 
implications 
of Corporate 

Joint 
Committee's 

31/10/2
022 

  Gareth Jones 

P
age 100



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

29 of 8 

R038 

Environmental 
capacity of riverine 

SACs exceeded due 
to noncompliance for 

acceptable 
phosphate levels 

Risk to the 
functioning of the 

planning authority in 
areas of the park 

affected by 
phosphate issue. 

Lack of progress on 
planning 

applications leading 
to increased 

numbers of appeals 
and reputational risk 

Very 
likely 

Red Severe 

No change. 
Protocol is in 

place to 
address 

applications 
which have 
the potential 

to further 
impact the 

SACs. 
Communicat
ions strategy 
developed. 
Collaborativ
e working 
towards 

solution with 
stakeholders

.  

31/10/2
022 

  Gareth Jones 

 

 

 

 

R039 
Risk associated with 

limitations on scheme 
of delegation  

Risk to functioning 
of planning service 

relating to 
pressures placed on 

head of service, 
through limited 

capacity to share 
planning application 

sign off 

Very 
likely  

Red Severe 

 Scheme of 
Delegation 
currently 

being 
reviewed. 

31/10/2
022 

  

Gareth Jones  

                   

                   

                   

                   

 
 

P
age 101



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  A&R 18-11-2022 

30 of 8 

 
 
 
 

P
age 102



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  ARC 18-11-22 

1 of 5 

To: Audit and Risk Committee, 18th November 2022 
From: Marcia Zurian, Corporate Services Officer 
 
 
Complaints, Compliments and Freedom of Information Updates 

 
 

Decision Required YES ☐ / NO ☒ Agenda Item 11 

 

Recommendation 

Note the contents of the reports 

 

 

 

 
  

Key Messages 

The purpose of this report is to present the annual statistical report on the 
Authority’s performance in dealing with complaints, compliments and Freedom of 
Information requests. 

Page 103

Agenda Item 11



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  ARC 18-11-22 

2 of 5 

Background 

 
1. To give Members an overview of the issues residents and customers felt  
strongly enough to either complain about or complement the Authority and details of 
the number of Freedom of Information/Environmental Impact Regulation requests 
and processing times.  
 
2. Data for the annual report has been extracted from the departmental 
spreadsheets put in place by the Corporate Officer. The formal complaints procedure 
response timescales are: 

 Stage 1 complaints within 20 working days unless extended: and 

 Stage 2 complaints within 20 working days unless extended. 

 
3. The complaints procedure was revised in 2015 year to make it a two-stage 
procedure in line with Local Government Ombudsman guidance and current best 
practice. It is due for review. 
 
4. To make it easier for people to submit a complaint, a single point of contact 
for all telephone and email complaints was introduced and promoted on the 
Authority’s website. 
 

Complaints 
 

5. The Authority has received a total of 12 complaints to date in 2022/23. Of 
these complaints, 12 were stage 1 complaints.  
 
6. The Authority has received a total of 0 Stage 2 complaints to date in 2022/23 
across all departments.  
 
7. There have been 8 complaints which has been responded within the 
timescales set, 1 complaint on hold, 2 complaints still ongoing and I after the 
timescale.  
 

8. There have been no complaints escalated to Stage 2 across all departments 
in 2022/23.  
 
9. The number of complaints being upheld or partially upheld were 3 
 

10. Please see attached spreadsheet  
 
Local Government Ombudsman Enquiries 
 

11. The Authority received Zero Ombudsman complaints, received in 2022/23. 
 
  

Page 104



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  ARC 18-11-22 

3 of 5 

Compliments 
 
12. Compliments received by departments and logged by Corporate Officer for 
2022/23 were 143 from January to date (enclosed as Appendix One).  Some teams 
receive compliments directly so unless they are forwarded on to the Corporate 
Officer they cannot be logged. 
 
Freedom of Information/ Environmental Impact Regulations and Subject Access 
Requests 
 

13. The Authority has received in total 23 requests to date during 2022/23 
comprising, 8 under FOI and 15 under the related Environmental Information 
Regulations (EIR).  
 
14. 7 requests responded within the statutory 20 working day timescale, 4 outside 
statutory timescale and 12 requests are ongoing. 
 

15. The Authority will shortly commence the roll out of an automated FOI/EIR 
process to improve the percentage of requests answered in time. 
 
Relation to Authority Priorities 

 
Complaints and compliments are a valuable tool in helping to understand resident’s 
and customers’ expectations of service delivery and should be an essential part in 
identifying service improvements across the Authorities.  
 
Freedom of Information remains an important element of the Authority’s commitment 
to transparency and accountability. Performance has undoubtedly been impacted by 
capacity issues, but it is hoped that ongoing work on policy, procedures, training and 
systems can improve both the customer experience and the Authority’s performance. 
 
Impact Analysis 

 
Financial - None directly from this report. 
 
Legal - The Authority has a number of legal and statutory obligations with regard to 
complaints, and information accessibility.  
 
Diversity - All officers involved in dealing with complaints must be mindful of ensuring 
a consistent approach in dealing with complaints in line with Equalities principles. 
 
Human Resources  None directly from this report 
 
Sustainability – None directly from this report. 
 
Risk 

 
Poor complaint and information request handling could be a reputational risk to the 
Authority breach of legislation and potential compensation payments to 
complainants. 

Page 105



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  ARC 18-11-22 

4 of 5 

Conclusion and Next Steps 

 
Legal Services will: 

 Analyse the data to improve service delivery 

 Review the corporate and department procedures for dealing with complaints, 
monitor response times on complaints; and 

 Report on the number of upheld / partially upheld on both Stage 1 and Stage 
2 complaints and FOI/EIR compliance. 

  

Page 106



Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  ARC 18-11-22 

5 of 5 

Appendix One: Complaints, Compliments and FOI reports 

 

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank



SUMMARY OF COMPLAINTS 

01/04/2022 – 08/11/2022 
 

LOG  

NO: 
Stage 1 Stage 2 

Date Received 
Complaint Summary 

Date Ack (5  

wd) 

Date Resp (20 

wd) 
STATUS Ack in 5 Resp in 20 Upheld? Planning Delivery Corporate 

1 Stage 1  03/05/2022 Complaint in relation to how a planning application 
has been handled 

 

06/05/2022  OPEN YES   X   

2 Stage 1  03/06/2022 Complaint in relation to how a parking assistant at one 
of our car park attitudes towards them was aggressive 
and intimidating and an episode as racism  

 

06/06/2022 08/06/2022 CLOSED YES YES Not upheld X   

3 Stage 1  01/06/2022 Complaint in relation to outcome of Enforcement case 

 
04/07/2022 18/08/2022 CLOSED YES YES Not upheld X   

4 Stage 1  21/06/2022 Complaint in relation to work not completed on ROW 
in the Village of Penderyn  

 

04/07/2022 18/07/2022 CLOSED YES YES Upheld  x  
5 Stage 1  25/06/2022 Complaint in relation a member staff 

 
28/06/2022 25/07/2022 CLOSED YES YES Partial  X  

6 Stage 1  05/07/2022 Complaint made in relation to the Café at the 

Visitor Centre – this has been forwarded to the 

Café to respond 

05/07/2022 06/07/2022 CLOSED YES YES Not Upheld  x  

7 Stage 1  10/07/2022 
Complaint about a member of staff 

12/07/2022  OPEN          
ON HOLD 

o 

On hold 

      

8 Stage 1  09/06/2022 
Complaint in relation to planning application 

09/06/2022 14/07/2022 CLOSED YES NO Not upheld x   

9 Stage 1  16/07/2022 Complaint - in relation that BBNPA does not 

accept cash at our pay & display machines and 

the shop at Cwm Porth  

18/07/2022 01/08/2022 CLOSED YES YES Not upheld  x  

10 Stage 1  16/07/2022 Complaint - Paths, handrails and steps are in 

poor condition and overgrown in Sennibridge 

area. 

18/07/2022 18/07/2022 CLOSED YES YES Partial   x  

11 Stage 1  23/08/2022 Complaint in relation to a planning application 

 
24/08/2022  OPEN YES      

12 Stage 1  05/09/2022 Complaint in relation to Visitor Centre losing 3 

minutes early  

07/09/2022 21/09/2022 CLOSED YES YES Not upheld    x 

 

P
age 109



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SUMMARY OF INFORMATION REQUESTS 

01/04/2022 – 08/11/2022 
 

 

LOG  

NO: FOIA DPA SAR EIR Date Received Information request 

Date Ack  

(5 wd) 

Date Resp 

(20 wd) Ack in 5 

Days 

Resp in 

20 Days STATUS 

1 x   x 05/04/2022 information about any and all prior approval/notification applications made since 2000 
under the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (and/or 
any amending orders or instruments) for a certain Planning application and adjoining or 
associated land. The information requested includes application forms, supporting 
documents and drawings, officer reports, decision notices, correspondence and any 
screening/assessment under the Habitats Regulations. 
 

06/04/2022 18/05/2022 YES NO CLOSED 

2 x   x 11/04/2022 Freedom of Information request - Planning permission rejections due to protected species in 
Welsh national parks 

11/04/2022 24/04/2022 YES YES CLOSED 

3 X    14/04/2022 Information request on IT equipment  14/04/2022 10/05/2022 YES YES CLOSED 

4     28/04/2022 Information on rural appraisals for dwelling/mobile homes by Consultants   28/04/2022 10/05/2022 YES YES CLOSED 

5    X   
EIR Information on Cwm Taf Water Supply 

  17/08/2022 YES NO CLOSED 

6 X   X 20/05/2022 
Information on planning application 20/18931/Ful and 20/18928/FUL 

20/05/2022 28/08/2022 YES NO CLOSED 

7 X    25/05/2022 
Information on pre-planning Gilestone 

25/05/2022    OPEN 

8 X    31/05/2022 
Information on report from former monitoring officer  

01/06/2022    OPEN 

9 X    07/06/2022 
various Information  

08/06/2022     OPEN 

10 X    07/06/2022 
Information on handwritten notes from member of the BBNPA 

08/062022     OPEN 

11    X 08/08/2022 
Request re application of NRW Guidance on Phosphates 

10/08/2022  25/08/2022 YES YES CLOSED 

12     01/07/2022 
Request for information on P20617 

17/08/2022  23/09/2022 YES YES CLOSED 

13     29/04/2022 
Request for information on 15/13044/FUL 

24/08/2022  25/08/2022 NO NO OPEN 

14     18/08/2022 

Request for information in relation to third party letter 

18/08/2022  30/08/2022 YES YES CLOSED 

15     14/09/2022 

Information request on planning application 22/20853/FUL 

14/09/2022     OPEN 

P
age 111



16     13/09/2022 

Information request on planning application 22/20853/FUL 

14/09/2022 04/10/2022 YES YES CLOSED 

17     03/10/2022 

Information on Mynydd Illtyd grazers 

06/10/2022 06/10/2022 YES YES CLOSED 

18     14/10/2022 Information on BBNPA response to the consultation on the government response to 

the landscapes review from the Brecon Beacons National Park.  

14/10/2022    YES  OPEN 

19     25/10/2022 Information on how many new dwellings have been granted planning permission with 

the settlement of Pontsticill, Merthyr Tydfil since 2012? 

27/10/2022    YES  OPN 

20     17/10/2022 

Information in relation to letter of support to a planning application  

    YES  OPEN 

21      27/10/2022 

Information on Event Notices Gilestone Farm  

27/10/2022    YES  OPEN 

22     27/10/2022 

Information on IT service desk  

28/10/2022    YES  OPEN 

23     02/11/2022 information on Gilestone - General Permitted development & communication with 

NRW 

03/11/2022   YES  OPEN 

 

P
age 112



 COMPLIMENTS LIST           From:  January 2022 

NB – Highlighted columns are new compliments since last Audit & Scrutiny Committee Meeting 

NO DATE COMMENTS 
143 7/10/22 A thank you card received from a member of the public thanking Jon Pimm for his first response and calm/smiling manner, 

whilst waiting for the Mountain Rescue team to arrive.  The lady had a suspected fracture of her right ankle. 

142 29/9/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Bethan Adams for her quick response in directing his planning query 

to the planning department. 

141 28/9/22 A personal visit to the Visitor Center from a couple who wanted to pass on their very grateful thanks to Jill Lambert for 

helping them find walks in the area. Jill was able to supply them with the information they required and details of several 

gentle walks in the area. 

140 27/9/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Nick Jones and the Estate team for replacing a stile with a gate on 

Talgarth Footpath 5. 

139 21/9/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Jill Lambert for supplying information on Christmas Markets in the 

Park. 

138 20/9/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Jill Lambert for her visitor transport information, which will prepare 

her for her forthcoming visit to the Park. 

137 24/8/22 An email received thanking Jane Pashley, for the information she supplied on external lighting in the Park, where buildings 

were appropriately designed to avoid impacts on biodiversity and dark skies. 

136 21/8/22 An email received from a member of the public, thanking Rob Reith and a lady from the Centre for their support in helping 

her (after closing hours) when she had a problem with her car and needed to phone the RAC. 

135 16/8/22 An email from a member of the public, thanking Jill Lambert for the helpful visitor information she provided in preparation 

for her visit to the Park. 

134 15/08/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Jayne Rees for taking the time to investigate, which car park in the 

Waterfalls area a ticket was issued on recent visit. 

133 11/08/22 An email received thanking Bethan Adams for passing on a member of the public’s email to the Ecology and Tourism teams. 

P
age 113



132 08/08/22 An email received thanking Gaynor Smith for the brilliant advice they received regarding a multiday walk using Public 

Transport. 

131 05/08/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Jayne Rees for directing them to the answers they required for 

paddleboarding on Llangorse Lake. 

130 28/07/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Ryan Thomas, for taking the time to come out on a site visit. This 
was the gentleman’s first ever planning application he’d put in, anywhere, and he wanted to do it himself. 
He stated he was impressed with Ryan’s professionalism and approachable helpful nature.  

129 22/07/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Jayne Rees, for taking so much trouble, and liaising with the 
Warden in trying to find a contact for an Ice Cream seller in one of our car parks, as the gentleman had left a pair of 
binoculars there on a visit. 

128 18/07/22 An email received thanking Jayne Rees for her prompt response when they contacted the Authority.  

127 11/07/22 An email received from a member of the public, thanking Jon, Les and Alan at Gwaun Hepste Car Park for the warm-
hearted welcome from the team working to greet/assist with parking.  This was his first visit to the Waterfalls.  Not only 
were they providing a valuable service, they went above and beyond to interact with guests and provide guidance for the 
routes.   

126 04/07/22 An email received from a member of the public, with positive feedback to Clive Williams about the work carried out on the 

access area and the gates, which were installed in Crucorney.  

125 30/7/22 An email received from a member of the public, thanking the Jon Pimm who attended a suspected stroke in the Waterfalls 

Area. His hand over was spot on and I really appreciated it. There was a delicate matter which he handled away from the 

casualty and his partner which was a nice touch.   

124 28/06/22 An email received from a member of the public, thanking Gaynor Smith for her information on Stargazing in the Park. 

123 20/06/22 An email from a member of the public, thanking Gaynor Smith for her information on using public transport to get to the 

Park. 

122 13/06/22 An email from a local horse rider thanking Lisa Lloyd, Rhys Powell and Gareth Cooper for arranging and installing a 

replacement bridleway gate in Llangynidr. 

121 12/06/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Jill Lambert for the information she provided him on visiting the 

Park with his bicycle.  

120 09/06/22 A letter received from the British Ecological Society, thanking Paul Sinnadurai, for his contribution to the report.  They were 
grateful for the time, effort and expertise Paul has dedicated in producing his report.   

P
age 114



119 06/06/22 An email from a local horse rider thanking Clive Williams, Rhys Powell and National Park Volunteers for the 3 new gates 
they have installed on a bridlepath.   

118 31/05/22 An email from a member of the public thanking Jill Lambert for the visitor information she gave him prior to his visit to the 
Park. 

117 21/05/22 An email received thanking the Information staff at the NPVC again for such a detailed and helpful reply.  The lady states 
“You guys are amazing and so very helpful.  I really appreciate all the information and looking forward to coming your 
way”. 

116 19/05/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Paul Williams so much for his amazing response about the 
National Park.  They said this will help them greatly and they could decide what best suits them to visit.  They really 
appreciated all the advice and info and would be purchasing waterfall guides. 

115 10/05/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Jill Lambert for her informative email about the Visitor Centre.  The 
member of the public stated, she was a perfect guide. 

114 09/05/22 A message received via the Authority’s website thanking Ian, Jaki and Jon Pimm for super friendly and detailed advice at 
Cwm Porth car park.  

113 01/05/22 An email received from a member of the public following their participation on a Geopark Walk during the Talgarth 
Walking Festival.  They wished to thank Alan Bowring and Dilys Harlow and stated that they had thoroughly enjoyed their 
walk. 

112 29/04/22 An email received from a member of the public to Lisa Williams and the Planning team mentioning that whole process has 
been very much more straightforward and easier to navigate than they had been led to believe it would be; and they had 
also appreciated that Lisa and her colleagues have been under considerable strain, especially during the Covid pandemic. 

111 25/04/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Gaynor Smith for such and extensive response to his question on 
the Offa’s Dyke section of the path through the Park. “It is so much more than I’d expected, and it’s absolutely invaluable.”  
“The time you took in your response has really made a difference, and I appreciate that immensely” 

110 23/04/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Alex Ham and the Planning Team for sending though a copy of 
their decision notice so quickly.  They stated that they have found that the service they received while going through the 
application had been most friendly, efficient and helpful throughout. An exceptional service from all involved! 

109 21/04/22 An emailed received from a member of the public wanting to compliment the attendants at Cwm Porth Car Park who were 
super friendly and helpful, when they arrived for their visit to the waterfalls. 

108 30/03/22 An email received from an applicant thanking Heather McDowell for her assistance in the determination of their planning 
application. 

107 29/03/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking the Wardens and ROW team for installing an excellent gate 

replacing the old stile. It’s a huge improvement and much appreciated. 

P
age 115



106 25/03/22 An email received from an Officer of WG thanking Julia Gruffydd and Angharad Hawkes so much for all their help over the 

past few years. It’s been an absolute pleasure working with you both. 

105 24/03/22 An email received from a member of the public, thanking Jill Lambert for her time in finding out which waterfall was in a 

picture they had and for the follow up information. 

104 22/03/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Jill Lambert for the information she supplied on Camping in the 

National Park. 

103 22/03/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Jill Lambert for the detailed information she sent them regarding 

Outdoor Activity Providers in the National Park area. 

102 17/03.22 An email received from Rhydri Women's Institute, thanking Francesca Bell, Benjamin Geeson-Brown and Alex Norman for 

such a tremendous visit to Craig y Nos. They had the most wonderful day in such glorious scenery. A day of great variety – 

great hosts, wonderful nature, hearts, minds and souls replenished with the glory of Wales. 

101 11/03/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Jon Pimm and Bronwyn Lally on locating their car after their keys 

had been found and handed in by another visitor. 

100 09/03/22 A tweet received from Pentwynmawr Primary School, saying what a fantastic day they had out with the Education team. 

99 07/03/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking Gaynor Smith for the informative information she supplied.  

98 05/03/22 An email received from members of the public thanking Steve (MAGGS) for being helpful and thoughtful regarding walking 

locations suitable for their limited walking capability whilst visiting the Waterfalls area.  Steve was interesting, knowledgeable 

and certainly greatly enhanced their experience. 

97 04/03/22 An email received from a member of the public to Julia Prosina thanking her for sending them a copy of the enforcement 

report, to which this person was one of the complainants. The person stated “there needs to be a clear message given to 

people who knowingly abuse regulations thinking they can get away with not following procedures.  You have clearly done 

this. We live in a very special area with rare species of life that is in need of protection.  So, thank you for addressing this. 

You have increased my faith in BBNPA and professional decision making.” 

96 03/03/22 An email received from an Officer at PCNP congratulating Jodie Bond on the writer's residence advert. She said what an 

absolutely genius idea and one of the most exciting projects she’s seen coming out of any of our National Parks in ages. 

P
age 116



95 28/02/22 An email received thanking Sarah Halladay for her most helpful and efficient response regarding a query about the process 

of submitting a planning application. 

94 24/02/22 A telephone call received from a member of the public who went on to thank Alex Ham and Jane Pashley for their advice on 

whether he needed planning permission to remove part of a leylandii hedge at the bottom of his garden. He complimented 

Alex on how lovely and profession she was. 

93 23/02/22 An email received from a member of the public thanking the Jane Pashley and Dani French for their excellent service and 

information they provided him. He now has a much clearer understanding and after he contacts MTCBC in the first instance 

and reads all the relative guidance BBNPA kindly provided, he will be able to follow the correct process. 

92 16/02/22 An email received from a gentleman from the USA thanking Jill Lambert for the information she sent him regarding 

Paragliding and Hang-gliding companies in readiness for his visit to the Park. 

91 15/02/22 An email received from a member of a community group that put in an application, thanking Heather McDowell for her 

excellent and supportive presentation at PAROW. 

90 31/01/22 A telephone call received from a gentleman thanking the Planning team for bringing his application to a conclusion, as it’s 

been ongoing for a number of years.   

 

P
age 117



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 119

Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Annual Head of Internal Audit Report 2021-22
	4 Annual Head of Internal Audit Report 2021-22 - Appendix 1 - PDF

	5 Buildings Management and Maintenance Report 2021-22
	5 Buildings Management and Maintenance Report 2021-22 - Appendix 1 - PDF

	6 Internal Audit Follow Up Report
	6 Internal Audit Follow Up Report - Appendix 1 - PDF

	7 Annual Plan for 2022-23
	7 Annual Plan 2022-23 - Appendix 1 - PDF

	8 Audit Wales Action Plan
	8 Audit Wales Action Plan - Appendix 1 (Action Plan BBNPA 2022.cmjupdate9Nov22)

	9 2021-22 Statement of Accounts - Audit Wales' Oral Update
	10 Risk Management
	11 Compliments, Complaints and Freedom of Information Updates
	11 Compliments, Complaints and FOI Update - Appendix 1 (Summary of Complaint Report)
	11 Compliments, Complaints and FOI Update - Appendix 2 (Summary of Information Requests Report)
	11 Compliments, Complaints and FOI Update - Appendix 3 (Compliment Log)

	14 Legal Risk Update
	14 Legal Risk Update - Appendix 1 (November 22 Legal Risk Register) PDF


